September 05,2019
To,

Department of Corporate Services,
The Stock Exchange Mumbai
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai-01

Dear Sir/Madam,
Sub: Annual report for the Financial Year 2018-19
Dear Sir

As required under Regulation 30 and Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulation, 2015, we submit herewith the Annual Report of the Company for the
financial year 2018-19 for the Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on Monday, September
30,2019 at 10.30 a.m. at A 243(A), Road No. 6 VKI Area, Jaipur 302013.

Kindly take the above on record and acknowledge the receipt of the same.

(Company Secretary)
M.No. A48713

LAWRESHWAR POLYMERS LTD. [sowious
A-243(A), Road No.6, V.K.I. Area, Jaipur (INDIA) SO 1301 OHSAS
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BE THE CHANGE.

If you do not create change, Change will create you

LEHAR

Annual Report 2018-19

LAWRESHWAR POLYMERS LIMITED
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Chairman’s Message

Dear Stakeholder,

I would like to begin with congratulating you all as our company completes 25 years of success in
the footwear industry. It gives me great pleasure to announce yet another year of healthy growth.
Financial Year 2018-19 was a crucial year for us as we re-emphasized our focus on the growth
agenda we had set for ourselves. The Financial year ended on March 2019 was another successful
year, where despite a challenging environment our business was able to face competition. We
expanded our reach and further strengthened our distribution so that we can serve our consumers
better with our wide range of product offerings.

We have been gomg through a maJor transformatlon over the past years and it is not easy to assess|

our shared: ambitlons to greater helghts Our transformatlonjourney Wlil'contmue to bunla friom: what
we have been achieving.

We recognize that the same factors that affected our performance at some point last year will
continue to weigh on our margins in 2019. However, we are confident we will improve oun
profitability during the year and we know what to do in order to make progress.

We continue to take steps towards manufacturing excellence across our production units. We have
been improving productivity and reducing manufacturing cost year on year, with the help of world
class manufacturing concepts. Last year was no exception, wherein we were able to manage oun
manufacturing expenses extremely well, while maintaining our high standards of quality and
manpower engagement.

In the year ahead, the business environment will continue to remain challenging and competitive]
intensity is likely to remain high. With our purpose driven products, passionate employees and your]
continued support, I am confident that we will continue to deliver growth that is consistent,
competitive, profitable and responsible.

As we move ahead, you can be assured that we shall work diligently to take this Company to greater
heights. I would like to thank all of you, our stakeholders, some of whom have been with us for
many years, are an integral part of our journey, in empowering our people and our company to be
more. If we can execute our strategies, and do the things we must learn to do, the year, and the
years, ahead of us could be deeply rewarding, and I look forward to a great journey ahead,
together.

With best regards
Ramesh Chand Agarwal
Chairman




o char

(4

Highlights of operations 2018-19

{(Rs. In lacs)

Particulars 2018-19 | 2017-2018 | 2016-2017 | 2015-2016 | 2014-15

Sales 9655.12 7817.78 7906.97 10009.09 8365.79
Discount 259.00 362.89 581.35 699.34 618.44
Discounted Sale 9396.12 7454.89 7325.62 9309.75 7747.35
Revenue 9396.12 7454.89 7906.97 10009.09 8365.79
Profit before Tax 304.42 235.25 210.81 471.26 321.55
Finance cost 477.54 453.16 417.52 366.62 283.50
Depreciation 298.41 287.82 193.30 206.05 148.38
Tax 83.96 39.87 80.02 165.89 107.07
Net profit 220.46 195.38 130.79 305.36 214.48
EBDIT 1080.37 976.23 821.63 1043.93 753.43
Equity Share capital 1367.88 1367.88 1367.88 1367.88 1367.88
Reserve & Surplus 4278.19 4080.19 4327.10 2424.01 2118.65
Revaluation Reserve 1653.21 1653.21 2045.10 272.80 275.58
Net worth 5646.07 5448.07 5694.98 3791.89 3486.53
Fixed Asset{Tangible & Intangible) 547422 526291 4999.70 2452.92 1675.38
Fixed Asset(Capital Work In Progress) 0.00 112.20 9.77 437.10 676.32
Total Assets 13042.73 13256.92 12457.24 9358.53 7856.78
Current Assets 7458.33 7779.26 7087.48 6034.64 5075.31
Non Current Assets 5584.40 5477.66 5369.76 3323.89 278147
Total Liabilities 7396.66 7808.85 5629.05 5566.64 4370.25
Current Liabilities 5950.11 6299.45 5503.14 4341.01 3358.59
Non Current Liabilities 1446.55 1509.40 1259.12 1225.63 1011.66
Borrowing- Long Term 809.16 897.31 1011.51 1042.37 898.31
Borrowing- Short Term 2855.20 3061.64 2926.71 2467.44 1828.52
Borrowing- Current Maturities 346.14 347.38 296.45 232.62 201.80
Secured Borrowing 3661.58 3918.97 4069.56 3742.43 2928.63
Unsecured Borrowing 34892 387.36 165.11 0.00 0.00
Capital employed 7092.62 6957.47 6954.10 5017.52 4498.19
EPS- Basic & Diluted (In Rs) 1.61 1.43 0.96 2.23 1.57
Book Value per share (in Rs) 41.28 39.83 41.63 27.72 25.49
ROCE(%) 3.11% 2.81% 1.88% 6.09% 4.77%
Current Ratio 1.25 1.23 1.29 1.39 1.51
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Rewriting History

Success doesn’t come from what you do occasionally. It comes from what you do consistently. The
road to success is not easy to navigate but with hard work, drive and passion, it is possible to
achieve your success. Here’s a trail of our incredible journey as a brand.

September, 2007: Installed the PU Pouring Machine for manufacturing PU Sole Footwear with the
Annual Capacity of 6.00 Lac pairs per annum & start the commercial production. Further, the
Company has also installed the fully automatic computerized EVA injected Moulding Machine with
the Annual Capacity of 6.00 Lac pairs per annual & start the commercial production with effect
from September 29, 2007.

November, 2007: On the occasion of Resurgent Rajasthan Partnership Summit held at Jaipur,
Signed Letter of Intent with the Government of Rajasthan for setting up of EVA Footwear, PU
Footwear, Sports Footwear, Leather Footwear, Sports Goods and Apparels at Jaipur.

April, 2008: The Company was awarded a Rate Contract from Government of India for supply of
IShoe Canvas Rubber Sole for Defense.

November, 2013: The Company acquired a Factory Land & Building measuring about 14325.00
Sq. Mtrs. situated at Kaledera, Jaipur for expansion of manufacture of footwears of latest
technology and to meet the rising demand of its customers.

May, 2015: The Company inaugurated a new plant at SP-41D, RIICO Ind. Area Kaladera, Tehsil -
Chomu Distt- Jaipur (Raj.) on for further expansion of the Company and to meet rising demand of]
customers.
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FOOTWEAR —
innovative and different type of product as per requirement of the market. There is a strong

Demand of Eva & PU product in the market hence management has planned to expand its
production capacity to cater the increased demand.

RISK AND CONCERN

Your Company continuously ascertains risks and concerns in the Footwear Industry affecting its
present operations, future performances and business environment. In order to overcome such
risks and concerns your Company adopts preventive measures as considered expedient and

necessary.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

P
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and time management sknll of nts employees. The Companya endeavour is to create an
environment where people can use all of their capabilities in promoting the business of the
Company. Number of people employed, as at 31/03/2019is 365 including the contract labour.

ICAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The report may contain certain statements that the Company believes are, or may be considered
to be “forward looking statements" that describe our objectives, plans or goals. All these forward
looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, including but limited to,
Government action, economic development, risks inherent in the Company's growth strategy
and other factors that could cause the actual results to differ materially from those contemplated
by the relevant forward looking statements.




ICERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of
Lawreshwar Polymers Ltd.

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Lawreshwar
Polymers Ltd. for the year ended on 31% March, 2019 as stipulated in SEBI (LODR)
regulation, 2015

2. The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management. Qur examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of the opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI (LODR) regulation, 2015.

1.  We state that no investor grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month against the
company as per the records maintained by the shareholders / Investors grievance
committee.

5.  We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

Company Secretarie

Sd/-
Date: 27.05.2019 (Vinod Kumar Naredi)
Place: Jaipur Prop.
ACS 20453

CP No. 7994

g, L€har"

For Naredi Vinod and Associatej
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CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

The Board of Directors
Lawreshwar Polymers Limited
Jaipur

We, Sanjay Kumar Agarwal, Chief Executive Officer and Rakesh Kumar Soni, Chief Financial Officen
of Lawreshwar Polymers Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

L. We have reviewed financial statements and Cash Flow statements for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2019.
D. To the best of our knowledge and information:
i These statements do not contain any untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading.
ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.
3. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct.
1. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in|
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.
5. We have indicated to auditors and the audit committee:

a. Significant Changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year, if any.

b. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year, if any and same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

c. Any instances of significant fraud of which we are aware, that involve the management ot
other employees who have a significant role in the company’s internal control system.

H. We affirm that we have not denied any personnel access to the audit committee of the Company
(in respect of matters involving alleged misconduct) and we have provided protection to whistle
blowers from unfair termination and other unfair or prejudicial employment practices.

7. We further declare that all Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for the year covered by this report.

For Lawreshwar Polymers Ltd For Lawreshwar Polymers Ltd
sd/- Sd/-

{Sanjay Kumar Agarwal) {Rakesh Kumar Soni)

Chief Executive officer Chief Financial Officer

Place:Jaipur
Date: 27.05.2019
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Dear Members,

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BOARDS' REPORT

The Board of Directors of your Company take pleasure in presenting its report on the working of
the Company for Financial Year 2018-19.

(Rupee in Lacs)

Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018
(Audited) (Audited)
Sales 9655.12 7817.78
Profit before Depreciation & Tax 602.83 523.07
Profit before Tax 304.42 235.25
Tax 83.96 39.87
Net Profit 220.46 195.38
Appropriation - -
Dividend NIL NIL
Balance b/f from the previous year 1580.595 1385.57
Transferred to General Reserve NIL NIL
Transferred to Reserve & Surplus 1801.41 1580.95

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on February 16, 2015, notified that Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) are applicable to certain classes of companies from April 1, 2016 with a
transition date of April 1, 2015. Ind AS has replaced the previous Indian GAAP prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. Ind AS is applicable to your Company from April 01, 2017.

RESULT OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANIES AFFAIRS

During the year under review your Company’s income from operations is Rs. 9396.12 Lacs ag
compared to 7454.89 lacs during the previous year. The Company has incurred a Profit for the
period of Rs. 220.46 Lacs as compared to the profit of Rs. 195.38 Lacs in the previous year.

SHARE CAPITAL
[There was no change in the Company’s share capital during the year under review

[The Company’s Authorised Share Capital is Rs. 15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crore) comprising of]
1,50,00,000 (One Crore Fifty Lacs) Equity Shares of 10/- (Rupees Ten) each and paid up equity
share capital is Rs 13 67,87 990/ (Rupees Thirteen Crore Slxty Seven Lacs Elghty seven Thousand
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RESERVE

During the financial year the company has not transferred any amount to reserve during the year
under review.
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aspects of the Risk Management pelicy through a duly constituted Risk Managemant Committee
(RMC). The RMC assists the Board in its oversight of the Company’s management of key risks,
including strategic and operational risks, as well as the guidelines, policies and processes for
monitoring and mitigating such risks under the aegis of the overall Business Risk Management
Framework. The Company follows well established and detailed risk assessment and minimization
procedures, which are periodically reviewed by the Board. The Company's Business Risk
Management Framework helps in identifying risks and opportunities that may have a bearing on
the organization’s objectives, assessing them in terms of likelihood and magnitude of impact and

determining a response strategy.

At present the company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of
the company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

lYour Company has an effective internal control and risk-mitigation system, which are constantly
assessed and strengthened with new/revised standard operating procedures. The Company'g
internal control system is commensurate with its size, scale and complexities of its operations. The
main thrust of internal audit is to test and review controls, appraisal of risks and business processes,
besides bench marking controls with best practices in the industry.

[The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Internal Control Systems and suggests improvements to strengthen the same. The Company
has a robust Management Information System which is an integral part of the control mechanism.

[The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors are periodically apprised
of the internal audit findings and corrective actions taken. Significant audit observations and
corrective actions taken by the management are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

[To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman of]
the Audit Committee.
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DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Diractors of the Company under
Section 149(7) of the Act, confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed
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urtiner, Mr. Gauri Shankar Kandoil, Independent Director has resigned from his position
.e.f 31.01.2019.

he details of familiarization programme for Independent Directors are available on Company’s
ebsite.

OARD MEETINGS

he Board met 19 times during Financial Year, the details of which are given in the Corporate
overnance Report that forms part of this Annual Report. The intervening gap between any two
onsecutive meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI(LODR)
015 and Secretarial Standard-1 (SS-1).

OARD EVALUATION

he Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board
ommittees and individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Corporate
overnance requirements as prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
bligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015.

he performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the
irectors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of
oard processes, information and functioning etc. The performance evaluation of the Executive
|rectors and Non Executlve Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Board of

- S ' JH NS T P T N - [ —
el Y i g e TP D W Bl e Teml ] FEapt 50 RN - Ty TP LR

d

lhe—eriteria—for—Birectors’ appointment has_been—set=up-by-the=Nomi

« Bt Comrnyitiees




shop floor
eting their
yyees and
protective
nowledge,

RKPLACE

of Sexual
ssment of
ermanent,
onstituted
lance with
ct, 2013.

) FY 2018-

omnanies ...

Jeaatiy-Takily

il be made
wours for a
sursiant to
the detai
icer of the

s

1s and has
nment are

LY

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Stakeholders' Grievance Committee
4. Risk Management Committee

The details of the Committees along with their composition, number of meetings, terms of
reference and attendance of members at the meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance
Report which forms part of this Annual Report. Further, during the year under review, the board
has accepted all the recommendations of the Audit Committee.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Company has a vigil mechanism named Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to deal with
instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. Details of the same are given in the Corporate
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HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY

During the year the Company had cordial relations with workers, staff and officers. The
management is done through personal touch, using various motivational tools and me
training needs requirements. The company has taken initiative for safety of empl
implemented regular safety audit, imparted machine safety training, wearing
equipments etc. The Company believes in empowering its employees through greater k
team spirit and developing greater sense of responsibility.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WO
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place a policy on Gender Equality, Gender Protection, Prevention
Harassment and Redressal System in line with the requirements of the Sexual Hara
Women at Workplace Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees (p
contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The Company has also ¢
an internal committee to consider and address sexual harassment complaints in accorc
the Sexual Harassment of women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) A

No complaints pertaining to sexual harassment were received and/ or disposed off during
19,
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The_information..reauired nursiiant.tn Se

inn..1Q7. read with, Rule 5. L1}

mcratior ) lautos, £

CAppairtheni and luen ir & i orospoct of rallo of remunorador
to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the Vinancial Year, w
availabie for inspection at its registered ofiice of the Company during the working |
period of twenty one days before the date of Annual General Meeting of the company |
Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 and members, it any interested in obtaining
thereof, shall make specific request to the Company Secretary and Compliance off
Company in this regard.

COMMITMENT TO QUALITY AND ENVIRONMENT

Your Company recognizes quality and productivity as a pre-requisite for its operatiol
implemented ISO 9001 and ISO 14001. Continuous efforts to preserve the envirc
pursued.
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ICORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

IAS per Provisions of Section 135 of the Company Act 2013, and rules made there under, the CSR ig
not applicable on your company for the Financial Year 2018-2019.

STATUTORY AUDITOR

Under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, it is mandatory to
rotate the Statutory Auditors on completion of the maximum term permitted under the said
section. In line with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s Ravi Sharma & Co.,
IChartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 015143C) was appointed as the statutory auditors of
the Company to hold office for a period of 5 consecutive years from the conclusion of the 23™
Annual General Meeting of the company held on 28" September, 2017, till the conclusion of the
28" Annual General Meeting of the Company, subject to ratification by shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting or as maybe necessitated by the act from time to time.

The Companies Amendment Act, 2017 has omitted the requirement of ratification of the
appointment of statutory auditors at every Annual General Meeting; the relevant amendment
made effective on May 07, 2018. Hence the ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors at the
ensuing AGM is not required.

LOANS AND INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY

Details of loans and investments by the Company to other body corporate or persons are given in
notes to the financial statements.

DEPOSITS:

lYour Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companieg
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

The Company does not have any subsidiary as on 31.03.2019

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

[The Company has adequate procedures for purpose of identification and monitoring of related party
transactions. All transactions entered into with related parties during the financial year were on
arm’s length basis. All related party transactions, if any are periodically placed before the Audit
Committee and the Board for review and approval, as appropriate. For details on related party
transactions, members may refer to the notes to the standalone financial statement.

The Company’s policy for related party transactions regulates the transactions between the
Company and its related parties. The said policy is available on the Company’s website viz,
www.leharfootwear.com. There were nho materially significant related party transactions made by the
Company with Promoters, Directors, key managerial personnel or other designated persons which
may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Details of such transactiong
are given in the Annexure-1 to this report.
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ICONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
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LISTING
The equity shares of your Company are listed with the Bombay Stock Excl
DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

The shares of your Company are being traded in electronic form and the

connectivity with both the depositories i.e. National Securities Deposit

Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). In view of the num:
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of applicable Securities Law and Regulations. Actual
ated in the statement. Important factors that could
global and domestic supply and demand conditions
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The Company is committed to adhere to
sections on Management Discussion and Ar
the Auditors of the Company regarding co
stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations 8
part of the this Annual Report.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this report, describing the Co
may be forward looking within the meaning
results may differ materially from those st
influence the Company’s operations include
affecting selling prices of finished goods, a
Government policies, regulations, tax laws, ¢
and other factors such as litigation an
responsibility in respect of the forward-looki
on the basis of subsequent developments, in
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanation obtained by
them, in terms of section 134(3) (c¢) your directors confirm that:

a) in the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and have made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true & fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019;

c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) internal financial controls have been laid down to be followed by the company and such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

f) proper system have been devised to ensure compliance with the provision of all applicable
law and that such system were adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL
The report on Internal Financial Control forms part of Independent Audit report.

CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the
Board and all employees in the course of day to day business operations of the company. The
Company believes in “Zero Tolerance” against bribery, corruption and unethical dealings /
behaviours of any form and the Board has laid down the directives to counter such acts. The Code
has been posted on the Company’s website www.leharfootwear.com.

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be followed
by the Directors and the designated employees in their business dealings and in particular on
matters relating to integrity in the work place, in business practices and in dealing with
stakeholders. The Code gives guidance through examples on the expected behaviour from an
employee in a given situation and the reporting structure.

All the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the
Code. All Management Staff were given appropriate training in this regard.

Declaration by Chief Executive officer regarding compliance by board members and senior
management personnel with the company’s code of conduct is given in Annexure-5.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to
regulate trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The
Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or
sale of Company shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when the
Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the Code.
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Code.

PAYMENT OF LISTING FEE

APPRECIATION

e g he = Sl VN e K i

AT

All Directors on the Board and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE REGULATOR OR COURT

There are no significant and material order passed by the Regulators/ court that would impact the
going concern status of the company and its future operations.

Your company has paid the Annual listing fee of BSE for the Financial Year 2019-20.

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to employees at all levels for thein
hard work, dedication and commitment towards Company's operations and performance. Your
Directors also wish to place on record their gratitude for the valuable assistance and co- operatlon
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Annexure- 1

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions

Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transactions

o|N|wm (>

the value, if any

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements including

NIL

m

Justification for entering into
arrangements or transactions

such

contract or

Date(s) of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances

T ™M

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general
meeting as required under first proviso to Section 188

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis

transactions

A Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship
B Nature of contracts/ arrangements/

transactions

C Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/

D Salient terms of the contracts
arrangements including the value, if any

or

E Date(s) of approval by the Board

F Amount paid as advances

(During the vyear under review, no material
transactions, contracts or arrangements (as
defined under the securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
requirements), 2015/ erstwhile listing agreement
on which were above the threshold limits
mentioned under Rule 15 of Companies (Meeting
of Board & its Powers) Rules, 2014) were entered
with the related parties by the Company. For
details of related party transactions, members
may refer to the notes to the financial statement)

By the order of the Board
For Lawreshwar Polymers Limited

SD/-
(Ramesh Chand Agarwal)
Chairman
DIN:00108287

Dated: 27.05.2019
Place:Jaipur
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IV.

| SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

year: 01/04/2018 :31/03/2019
C. Demat Total Total Demat Total Shares | Total %
Code Category of Shareholder Physical Shares % Physi
cal
(I) (ID) (I11) (I1V) (V) (VI) (VI) (VIII) (IX) X)
(A) PROMOTERS

(1) INDIAN

(a) INDIVIDUAL / HUF 8744717 0 8744717 63.93 8744717 0 8744717 63.93

(b) Central / State 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
government(s)

(c) BODIES CORPORATE 268750 o] 268750 1.96 268750 0 268750 1.96

(d) FINANCIAL o] 0 0 0.00 o] 0 0 0.00
INSTITUTIONS /
BANKS

(e) ANY OTHERS (Specify)

(i) GROUP COMPANIES 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00

(i) TRUSTS 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00

(iii) DIRECTORS RELATIVES o] 0 0 0.00 o] 0 0 0.00
SUB TOTAL (A)(1) : 9013467 0 9013467 65.89 9013467 1] 9013467 65.89
(2) FOREIGN

(a) BODIES CORPORATE o] 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00

[(3))] INDIVIDUAL Q 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00

(c) INSTITUTIONS Q 0 0 0.00 o] 0 0 0.00

(d) QUALIFIED FOREIGN 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
INVESTOR

(e) ANY OTHERS (Specify) 0 0 0 0.00 [¢] 0 0 0.00
SUB TOTAL (A)(2) : 0 0 0 0.00 0 7] 0 0.00
{(A)=(A)(1) + (A){(2) 9013467 0 9013467 65.89 9013467 [1] 9013467 65.89

{B) PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) INSTITUTIONS

(@) Central / State 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
government(s)

(b) FINANCIAL 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
INSTITUTIONS /
BANKS

(c) MUTUAL FUNDS / UTI 0 0 0 0.00 Q 0 0 0.00

(d) VENTURE CAPITAL 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
FUNDS

(e) INSURANCE 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
COMPANIES

(f) FII'S 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00

(g9) FOREIGN VENTURE o] 0 0 0.00 o] 0 0 0.00
CAPITAL INVESTORS

(h) QUALIFIED FOREIGN Q 0 0 0.00 o] 0 0 0.00
INVESTOR

(i) ANY OTHERS (Specify) Q 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
SUB TOTAL (B)(1) : 0 1] 1] 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
(2) NON-
INSTITUTIONS

(a) BODIES CORPORATE 542285 0 542285 3.96 836019 0 836019 6.11

{(b) INDIVIDUAL

(i) (CAPITAL UPTO TO Rs. 1 1905900 20 1905900 13.93 1869416 20 1869416 13.67
Lakh)

(i) (CAPITAL GREATER THAN 2150876 0 2150876 15.72 1908117 0 1908117 13.95

Rs. 1 Lakh)
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(c) ANY OTHERS (Specify)
{i) TRUSTS 0 0 Q 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
(ii) CLEARING MEMBER 36632 0 36632 0.27 17099 0 17099 0.13
{iii) NON RESIDENT INDIANS 29219 0 29219 0.21 34261 0 34261 0.25
(iv) DIRECTORS RELATIVES 0 0 Q 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
(v) EMPLOYEE 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
(vi) OVERSEAS BODIES 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
CORPORATES
(vii) UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE 400 0 400 0.00 400 0 400 0.00
ACCOUNT
(d) QUALIFIED FOREIGN
INVESTOR
0 0 Q 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
SUB TOTAL (B)(2) : 4665312 20 4665332 34.11 4665312 20 4665332 34.11
(B)=(B)(1) + (B)(2) 4665312 20 4665332 34.11 4665312 20 4665332 34.11
(© SHARES HELD BY
CUSTODIANS FOR
GDRs & ADRs
(i) Promoter and Promoter 0 0 Q 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
Group
(i) Public 0 0 Q 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
SUB TOTAL (C){1) : 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
{O)=(CO)(1) [+] 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00
Grand Total (A) + (B) 13678779 20 | 13678799 | 100.00 | 13678779 20 13678799 | 100.00
+ (€)

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end of the
of the year 01/04/2018 year 31/03/2019
% of % of
Shares Shares % Change in
Number | % Shares | Pledged/ | Number | % Shares | Pledged/ shareholding
Sr.No | NAME of of the encumbe | of of the encumb X
Shares | Company | red to Shares Company | ered to during the
year
total total
shares shares
1 | RAMESH CHAND AGARWAL | 2019170 14.76 0.0000 | 2019170 14.76 0.0000
2 | RAJ KUMAR AGARWAL 1454284 10.63 0.0000 | 1454284 10.63 0.0000
3 | PRAMOD KUMAR AGARWAL | 1100936 8.05 0.0000 | 1100936 8.05 0.0000
4 | NAVEEN KUMAR AGARWAL 656191 4.80 0.0000 656191 4.80 0.0000
5 | pARESHWIR [OOTCARE 268750 1.96 0.0000 | 268750 1.96
—— — : [ SANTAY AGARWAI 2AEENN - i1|'94 L . O nnnn ')'gl;l;lnln e Q4 e 1’? -
JORNENE L U0 ! i \! : 134 TL Ll il : ] Tl
L. SR | LAHE iy | 0 s s maz] o
1406 00000 ARVVAL g 00400 J. : 146508y 1.4
W0 00080 AVAL RO | 3005 JIREE
Bt UL NEE ACEAHEL iy % : .
it oLt | R RIATG O i
12K 5L - R G LY O £t
)00 0.0050 14 1 mamzEs acarwa | 00000 0.
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| | 9013467 | 65.80 | 0.0000 | 0013467 |  65.89 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 |
(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)
Share holding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
01/04/2018
Number of % of total Number of | % of total
Shares shares of the | Shares shares of
company the
company
At the beginning of the year 9013467 65.89 9013467 65.89
Increase during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
Decrease during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the year 9013467 65.89 9013467 65.89

(iv) Shareholding pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDR’s and ADR'’s)
Shareholding as on 01/04/2018 Shareholding as on 31/03/2019
Top Ten Shareholders No. of % of total shares No. of % of total shares
shares of the company shares of the Company
IL AND FS SECURITIES - - 524327 3.83
SERVICES LIMITED
SANTOSH TULSIDAS 471188 3.44 - -
BOHRA
DEEPINDER SINGH 326892 2.39 326892 2.39
POONIAN
VINITA SUNIL PATODIA 174196 1.27 174196 1.27
BHAMINI PARESH SHAH 24,115 0.18 148,763 1.09
TRADELINK EXIM INDIA
PVT LTD 110529 0.81 - -
RACHNA LODHA 101,594 0.74 106,207 0.78
PINKI JAIN 99,836 0.73 99,836 0.73
VEPAR SOLUTIONS
PRIVATE LIMITED 10,000 0.07 70,542 0.52
ULHAS NARAYAN
DEOSTHALE 95,000 0.69 95,000 0.69
NEETA ANOOP TANDON 65,176 0.48 65,176 0.48
YOGESH CHAUDHARY - - 63,582 0.46
SAM FINANCIAL
SERVICES 59429 0.43 - -
TEJAS DIPAK PAREKH 50000 0.37 50000 0.37
DAGA SANDEEP RAMDAS 50000 0.37 50000 0.37
(v) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS & KMP
Shareholding at the end of Cumulative Shareholding
the year during the year
For Each of the Directors & KMP No. of % of total shares Reason No of % of total
shares of the company shares shares of the
company
RAMESH CHAND AGARWAL (Chairman &
Director)
At the beginning of the year 2015170 14.76
2019170 14.76
At the end of the year 2019170 14.76
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RAJ KUMAR AGARWAL (Managing Director)

At the beginning of the year 1454284 10.63
1454284 10.63
At the end of the year 1454284 10.63
NARESH KUMAR AGARWAL (Executive
Director)
At the beginning of the year 1195704 8.74
1195704 8.74
At the end of the year 1195704 8.74
GAURI SHANKAR KANDOI (Non-Executive
Director)
At the beginning of the year
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share
holding during the year specifying the reasons
for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/
S wis/sweat, eanity. efe) .

AT tne erd cf tne year

RADHEY SHYAM GEMINI (Non-Executive

Director)

At the beginning of the year

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share

holding during the year specifying the reasons

for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/

bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year

PREETI GOYAL (Non-Executive Director)

At the beginning of the year

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share NONE

holding

for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/

bonus/s

during the year specifying the reasons

weat equity etc)

At the end of the year

RAKESH KUMAR SONI (CFO)

At the beginning of the year

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share

holding

for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc)

during the year specifying the reasons

At the end of the year

GEETIKA BISHT (COMPANY SECRETARY)

At the beginning of the year

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share

holding

for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc)

during the year specifying the reasons

At the end of the year

Sanjay Kumar Agarwal (CEO)
At the beginning of the year 265500 1.94

265500 1.94
At the end of the year 265500 1.94

\") INDEBTEDNESS

Amount In Rupee

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
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B. directors:

Remuneration to other

SL.No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of the Directors

Total
Amount

.1 Indenendent Di|'er.tp

I’I$IIII (NI EINIINE

Gauri Shankar Radhey Shyam

B RN

LY Fem b -
airinitie

_|..Preeti_ Gaval |

TR I A T
Teelines

fAn s =

YIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
Key Managerial Personnel
CEO Company CFO Total
Secretary
in
1200000 314729 | 1720841 3235570
e
334440 - - 334440
on
1534440 314729 | 1720841 3570010

Clbwmmiohi DEling @y s e SO

(©)

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGEF
MD/MANAGER/WTD

No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained
section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act,
1961.

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of tt
Income Tax Act, 1961

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under secti
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

N

Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

Commission

as % of profit

others, specify

Others, please specify

Total
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VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of | Brief Details of Authority Appeall
the Descripti | Penalty/Punis | (RD/NCLT/ | made if any
Companies | on hment/Compo | Court) (give
Act unding fees details)

imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment NONE

Compounding

C. OTHER
OFFICERS IN
DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

By the order of the Board

For Lawreshwar Polymers Limited

Ssd/-

(Ramesh Chand Agarwal)

DIN: 00108287
Chairman

Dated: 27.05.2019
Place:Jaipur







We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

1.

. Sd/-
Date.-27._05.2019 {Vinod Kumar Naredi)
Place: Jaipur

Prop.
ACS 20453
CP No. 7994

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as "Annexure A’ and forms
an integral part of this report.

5. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

6. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and

8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

9. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

10. The EPF & Misc. Provisions Act, 1952;

(O) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i) The Listing Agreements and Uniform listing Agreement entered into by the Company
with Bombay Stock Exchange;

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act. Mr. Gauri Shanker Kandoi was resigned W.E.F.
31.01.2019 &in his place Mr. Sunil Agarwal has been appointed W.E.F. 27.04.2019.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and to ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For Naredi Vinod and Associates
Company Secretaries
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To,
The Members,

Lawreshwar Polymers Limited
A-243(A) Road No. 06, V.K.I. Area,
Jaipur 302013 (Rajasthan).

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company Our|

rrenmncikiling ic fo ovieaee an aeinian on thaon cosvotarialrorands, hared ~noame andif o s e s

2.

Annexure A

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain re:
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification w
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of /
of the company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compl
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, st
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of proces
random test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nc
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the compan

Place: Jaipur
Date: 27.05.2019 For Naredi Vinod and Ass
Company Secretar

Sd/-
(Vinod Kumar Nare
Prop.
ACS 20453
CP No. 7994




Annexure-5

To,

The Chairman

The Board of Directors
Lawreshwar Polymers Limited
Jaipur

Dear Sir/Madam,
Sub: Declaration confirming compliance with the Code of Conduct

I, Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agarwal, Chief Executive Officer of the Company do and hereby acknowledge
and confirm that during the financial year 2018-19, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the
Board of Directors and senior management have not violated any of the provisions of the Code of|
Conduct as applicable to the Executive Directors and Members of Senior Management of the
Company or any policies or legal/ regulatory requirement of the Company, directly or indirectly

applicable to the job or responsibility.

By the order of the Board
For Lawreshwar Polymers Limited

Ssd/-

Sanjay Kumar Agarwal

(Chief Executive Officer) Dated: 27.05.2019
Place: Jaipur
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. COMPANY’'S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance is focused upon a rich legacy of fair, ethical
and transparent governance practices. The Company is conscious of its responsibility as good
corporate citizen and is committed to high standard of Corporate Governance practices. This is
reflected in the well balanced and independent structure of the company’s eminent and well
represented Board of Directors.

Your Company believes that sound corporate governance is a key element for enhancing and
retaining the trust of investors and various other stakeholders. As a responsible corporate citizen
your company has evolved best practices which are structured to institutionalise policies and
procedures that enhance the efficacy of the Board and inculcate a culture of accountability,
transparency and integrity across the Company.

Above all, Corporate Governance must balance individual interest with corporate goals and operate
within accepted norms of propriety, equity, fair play and a sense of justice. Accountability and

trancnarancy ara ey driviare tn imnenva dacicignomaling and tha pationala hohind cich _dacicione
tnimnenve dacicinnamaling and tho pationala hobind cuch docicione

WriZn in L creates stakehoiaers confidance.

2. COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ity

Your Company endeavours to have a judicious mix of executive, non executive and Independe
Directors, so as to have independence on the Board and separate its function of governance fr
that of management. Your Company also has a woman Independent Director which brings divers
on the Board.

As on March 31, 2019, the Compaosition of Board of Directors is as follows;

COMPOSITION OF BOARD AND DIRECTORSHIP/ COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS THERE OF AS ON MARCH 31

ee S.No. Name of Category No. of Directorship in No. of Committ
ld Directors other Companies Membership he
mber Indian Others Chairman Me
- 1 Ramesh Chand Chairman, Executive Director 2 - 1

Agarwal
1 = LML p=i -

Y
| | 1

2019 has resigned from the Board of
esighation from the designation of

t Mr. Ramesh Chand Agarwal, Mr. Raj

o ]IIIII?II\‘"_' T T e M

T

et A i
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Ewgoutree Tlirector

2 Radhey & [r cutive Tndepencerrt Brector 5
Gemini
5 Preeti Goyal Non Executive Independent Director -

* Mr. Gauri Shankar Kandoi vide his letter dated January 31,
the Company. The Board considered and accepted his r
Independent Director.

None of the Directors are related to the other Directors excep
Kumar Agarwal and Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal.
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Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal is the son of Mr. Ramesh Chand Agarwal and Mr. Raj Kumar Agarwal is
younger brother of Mr. Ramesh Chand Agarwal.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETING AND ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS:

During the year under review, Nineteen Board Meetings were held on 09.04.2018, 02.05.2018,
07.05.2018, 28.05.2018, 09.06.2018, 16.06.2018, 09.07.2018, 27.07.2018, 11.08.2018,
18.08.2018, 28.08.2018, 06.11.2018, 23.11.2018, 20.12.2018, 03.01.2019, 29.01.2019,
04.02.2019, 14.03.2019 and 27.03.2019 and the time gap between two meetings did not
exceeded 120 days. All statutory and other important items / information were placed before the
Board for approval / review.

The composition and category of the Board of Directors are as follows:

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

S.No. Name of Directors No. of Board Meetings held No. of Board Meetings| Attended the last
during the year attended AGM
1 Ramesh Chand Agarwal 19 19 Yes
2 Raj Kumar Agarwal 19 19 Yes
3 Naresh Agarwal 19 19 Yes
4 Radhey Shyam Gemini 19 19 Yes
5 Preeti Goyal 19 19 Yes
6 G.5. Kandoi 19 16 Yes

The Board is primarily responsible for the overall direction of the Company’s activities. All the
Directors have a good understanding of important business aspects.

INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD AMONG OTHERS

The day to day business is conducted by the officers and the managers of the Company under the control
& supervision of Managing Director / Executive Director of the Company. The Board generally meets
every quarter to review and discuss the performance of the Company, its future plans, strategies and
other pertinent issues relating to the Company. The Board performs the following specific functions in
addition to its other functions:

. Review, monitor and approve major financial and business strategies and corporate actions.

. Assess critical risks facing the Company, review options for their mitigation.

. Provide counsel on the selection, evaluation, development and compensation of senior
management.

The Board has complete access to all the relevant information of the Company. The quantum and quality
of information supplied by the management to the Board goes well beyond the minimum requirement
stipulated under Companies Act, 2013, Secretarial Standard on the meetings of the Board issued by
Institute of Company Secretaries of India and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Directors may seek necessary
clarification from the management on any information provided to them and also have the right to seek
external legal advice as may be required for the performance of their duties.

A MATRIXSETTING OUT THE SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

a. Skill, Expertise and Competence of the Board of Directors:

M m&g&mmmm -understanding of applicableaccounting regulations, |
resulting in proficiency in complex financial management, capital allocation, financial reporting processes, budgeting, strategic
planning including corporate restructuring or experience in actively supervising a principal financial officer, principal accounting
officer, controller, public accountant, auditor or person performing similar functions.
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10.
11.
12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure correct, sufficient and credible financial information.

Recommending to the Board appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors
of the listed entity.

Approving payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them.

Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular referenceto:

i) Matters required to be included in the Directors' Responsibility Statement
to be included in the Board's Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134
of the Companies Act, 2013;

i) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

iii) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgement by the
management;

iv) Significant adjustments made in financial statements arising out of audit findings;

v) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
vi) Disclosure of any related party transactions; and

vii)  Qualifications in draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the
Board forapproval

Monitoring and reviewing with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds
raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of
funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice
and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a
public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps
in this matter

Reviewing and monitoring the auditors independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, whereveritis necessary

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems

Reviewing, with the management, the performance of statutory auditors and internal
auditors, adequacy of internal control systems

Formulating the scope, functioning, periodicity and methodology for conducting the internal
audit

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting
structure coverage and frequency of internal audit

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow-up thereon

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the Board

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in the payment to depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors

To review the functioning of the Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower mechanism Approval of
appointment of the CFO (i.e. the whole time Finance Director or any other person heading the




finance function or discharging that function) after assessing qualifications, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee.
21. Reviewing financial statements, in particular the investments made by the Company's unlisted
subsidiaries
22. Reviewing the following information:
i) The Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

i) Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee),
submitted by management;

iii) Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory
auditors;

iv) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

v) Reviewing the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal
auditor/internal auditor(s)

The Audit Committee has the following powers:

1. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

II. To seek information from any employee.

II1. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

Iv. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

At the invitation of the committee, the Statutory Auditor attended the Audit Committee Meetings to
answer and clarify the queries raised at the committee meetings.

COMPOSITION & MEETINGS

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Name of Position Status No. of meeting No. of meeting

Directors held during the attended during
Financial Year the Financial Year

Mrs. Preeti Independent Non Chairperson 5 5

Goyal Executive Director

Mr. Naresh Kumar Executive Director Member 5 5

Agarwal

Mr. G.S. Independent Non Member 5 5

Kandoi* Executive Director

* Mr. Gauri Shankar Kandoi vide his letter dated January 31, 2019 has resigned from the Board of
the Company. The Board considered and accepted his resignation from the designation of
Independent Director.

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a duly constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee, which amongst
others is responsible for identifying and recommending persons who are qualified to become
directors or appointed as part of senior management of the Company and laying down
remuneration policy.
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5. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS

and the company during the financial year 2018-2019.

(A) There was no pecuniary relationship or transaction between the Non-Executive Directors

(B) The Non-executive Directors does not have any other material pecuniary relationship or

transactions with the Company during the year. Company does not pay any Remuneration

to the Non Executive Directors

a) The Non-executive Directors did not have any other material pecuniary relationship
or transactions with the Company during the year.
b) No Remunerations was paid to the Non Executive Directors during the Financial Year
2018-2019.
c) No Sitting fees were paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending Board
Meetings or Committee Meetings during the Financial Year 2018-2019.
d) No commission has been paid to any Director.
e) Severance Fees: NIL

f) Number of Equity Shares held by Non-Executive Directors: NIL

g) An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company
h) The appointment is subject to termination by giving one month notice in writing on
either side.

MARCH, 31 2019

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(C) DETAILS OF THE REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON

The details of the remuneration paid during the year 2018-2019 to the Managing/Executive
Director(s) are as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Agarwal &

Name of | Relationship | Business Remuneration paid during 2018-19 (Amount In Rs.)
Director | with Relationship
directors with the All  element Fixed Service Stock
company of components contract, options
remuneratio and Notice details,
n package performance Period, if any
i.e. salary, linked severance
benefit, incentives fee
bonuses, along with
pensions performance
etc. criteria
Raj Relative of | Managing 25,69,800 - - -
Kumar Ramesh Chand | Director
Agarwal Agarwal &
Naresh
Agarwal
Naresh Relative of | Executive 25,69,440 - - -
Kumar Ramesh Chand | Director
Agarwal Agarwal & Raj
Kumar
Agarwal
Ramesh Relative of Raj | Chairman 25,69,800 - - -
Chand Kumar
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Agarwal

Naresh Kumar
Agarwal

The appointment is subject to termination by giving one month notice in writing on either

side.

The Company does not have at present
Directors or Employees.

6. STAKEHOLDERS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
The Stakeholders’ Relati

—| No. of meeting: No. of meeting——
lmeld duerimg; the— atbended-during=—
Filtancidl Year | thie Fimancial Yean.

i‘ P . P

—| i i

— 1 1

-y 31, 2019 has resighed from the Board of
his resignation from the designation of

HE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

No. of Queries/ Complaints

Received Attended Pending
1ce Nil Nil Nil
Nil

_|l?IJJ III\Iil
er

‘ear.com

1ent Committee which assists the Board in its
risks, as well as the guidelines, policies and
under the aegis of the overall business risk

any scheme for grant of Stock Options to its

A eiiBANCE RECUORD OF S AKEHULDERS" GRIEY
MARCH 3%, 2
Name of Positiom Status—

Sthygarmr Germimi Executive Directar

Mr——G.5—| Independeant Nom e bves—
Kandei* Executive: Divectonr

* Mr. Gauri Shankar Kandoi vide his letter dated Januai
the Company. The Board considered and accepted
Independent Director.

QUERIES AND COMPLAINTS RECEIVED DURING
2019

Nature of Query/ Complaint

Received from security holders for non- receipt of balar
sheet/dividends/shares in demat suspense account etc
Rer.ﬂ}ledimm,rem|Iafnrv, hadjes . such_ as._Ministrv

Y
i L

JE

Name and Designation and Address of Compliance Officer
Ms. Geetika Bisht, Company Secretary & Compliance Offic
A243(A), Road No. 6, VKI Area, Jaipur 302013

E-mail IDtoredress investor grievances: csco@leharfootw

7. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company has a duly constituted Risk Managen
oversight of the Company’s management of key |
processes for monitoring and mitigating such risks
management framework
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RENCE

ire there is an embedded, robust process in place throughout the Company to
- assess, mitigate and report business risks with clear lines of ownership.

> and co-ordinate risk management process covering all areas of risk, through an
iate business risk management organisation.

ire that the business risk strategy and management processes comply with
le regulatory requirements and corporate governance principles.

ure that the business risk management principles and processes are widely
ood across the Company through adequate induction, training and awareness
5.

dically monitor and review Company’s key business risks and risk mitigation plans
vise the Board of business risks which could materially impact the Company’s
of its business plans, strategy, and reputation, if left untreated.

rt to the Board on key risks, risk management performance and the effectiveness of
controls

N & MEETING

e met once on 04.02.2019 during the year 2018-2019. The Composition and
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE FOR THE

31, 2019
No. of meeting Name of Position Status No. of meeting
attended during Directors held during the
the Financial Year Financial Year
1 Mr. Ramesh Chairman Chairman 1
Chand Agarwal
1 Mr. Raj Kumar Managing Director Member 1
Agarwal
1 Mr. Naresh Executive Director Member 1
Agarwal

gs. The forthcoming
er, 2019. The details

8. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
Since its incorporation, the Company has had 24 Annual General Meetin
annual general meeting is scheduled to take place on Monday, 30" Septemt
n respect of last three AGMs:-
LOCATION AND TIME OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS

Special Financial Venue Date Time
Resolution Year
Passed for
Special Resolution 2017-18 A-243 A Road No 6, V. K. L. 28" 10.30 A.M
for. Annaintment of Area, laipur - 302.013. Sentemher,
\‘HH”U [ “““‘;\
Diescior 0
AR DR T I | ST eRe
Special Resolution 20LG-1y A-243 A Road No &, W0 KL L 2 0,30 A
was passed U/s 197 Area, Jaipur - 302 013. September,
& 198, Under 2017
Section 148 and
under section 20 of




the Companies Act,
2013

2015-16 A-243 ARoad No 6, V. K. L.

Area, Jaipur - 302 013.

27 11.00 A.M Special Resolution
September, was passed U/s
2016 196, 197, 198 and

203 of Companies
Act, 2013

Meeting.

.
ng the F.Y. 2018-19.

the company’s act, 2013, read with
) resolution has been passed through

e forms of corporate and financial
1ents. Quarterly results are usually
cial Express and Amrit India. These
ny www.leharfootwear.com and also
oesn't displays official news releases
e Analysts. No presentation has been
y. The Management Discussion and

tember 30, 2019 at 10.30 A. M

1 No: 6 V.K.I. Area, Jaipur 302013

2018 to March 31, 2019

eptember 23, 2019 to Monday,
September 30, 2019

been recommended by the Board of
year under review. The Company has
y dividend so far hence there is not
aid / unclaimed dividend’s.

s Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)

0ze Jeejeebhoy Towers

Street, Mumbai- 400001.

for the financial year 2019-2020

No special Resolution requiring postal ballot is being proposed at the ensuing Annual General

RERIL W I NS L T L T A
The company has not held Extraordinary General Meeting duri
POSTAL BALLOT

During the year pursuant the provision of the section 110 of
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, nc
Postal Ballot in the Company.

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company interacts with its investors through multipl
communications such as annual reports, result announcen
published in English and Hindi daily newspapers, viz., Finan
results are also made available on the website of the Compa
posted at the online portal of BSE. The Company’s website d
and presentations made to the Institutional Investors or to th
made to Institutional Investors / Analysts by the Compan
Analysis (MD&A) forms part of the Annual Report.

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

25'™ Annual General Meeting

Monday, Se
Day, Date and Time

Venue A-243 (A) Roa
Financial Year April 1
Book Closure Monday, S

No Dividend has
Directors for the
not declared an
any ung

Dividend

Listing on Stock Exchange(s) The Bombay
Phir

Dalal

Note: The Company has paid listing fees, as applicable
to the BSE.




Stock Code BSE-532829
ISIN No. INE 976H01018
Depository Connectivity NSDL and CDSL

11. DISCLOSURES

1. There were no transactions of material nature with related parties during the year that had
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

2. There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures
imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority
on any matter related to the capital markets during the last three years.

3. The Company has announced Whistle Blower policy. All the personnel of the company have
the access to the Audit Committee.

4. The Company is complying with all the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 and SEBI
Listing Regulations, 2015 as applicable.

5. The company has framed Related Party Transaction Policy and is placed on the Company’s
website www.leharfootwear.com

6. During the financial year ended 31% March, 2019 the company did not engage in
commodity hedging activities.

7. The Company is in compliance with corporate governance requirements as specified in
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

12. COMPLIANCE WITH SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

Mandatory Requirements

The Company is fully compliant with the applicable mandatory requirements under Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Discretionary Requirements

A. The Board
Since the Company does not have a Non-Executive Chairman, it does not maintain such office.

B. Shareholder Rights

Half yearly financial results are forwarded to the Stock Exchanges and uploaded on the website of
the Company like quarterly results.

C. Modified opinion(s) in audit report

During the year under review, there was no audit qualification in the Auditors’ Report on the
Company’s financial statements.

D. Separate posts of chairperson and chief executive officer

The post of the Chairman of the Company and the CEO are held by different persons.




E. Reporting of internal auditor

DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

Details of Unclaimed shares lying in unclaimed suspense account

The Chief Internal Auditor of the Company attends the meeting of the Audit Committee on regular
basis. Internal audit findings are reported directly to the Audit Committee.

13. THE COMPANY HAS FULLY COMPLIED WITH THE APPLICABLE REQUIREMENT
SPECIFIED IN REG. 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSE (B) TO (I) OF SUB-REGULATION (2) OF
REGULATION 46.

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The Company has followed the treatment laid down in the Accounting Standards prescribed by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, in the preparation of financial statements. There is a
audit gqualifications in the Company’s financial statements for the year under review.

IApplicaton
Sr. No. o Inv Name [Shares [Lot no Book No [Sr. No Address
Radha H No.1-7-16/1/D, Plot No,
1 548607 Chivukula 400 114 1024 25 124, Srinivas Nagar, Temple
Alwal, Secunderabad 500010

(a) Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account
lying at the beginning of the year-1

(b) Number of shareholders who approached listed entity for transfer of shares from
suspense account during the year-0

() Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense account during
the year-0

(d) Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account
lying at the end of the year-1

(e) That the voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such
shares claims the shares.

MARKET PRICE DATA (BSE)*

The Monthly high and low quotations of shares traded on The Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited and performance in comparison to broad based indices viz. BSE SenseX is as

follows:
Month BSE Sensex Stock Prices
High Low Volume (Nos.) High Low
Apr-18 35,213.30 32,972.56 1,67,407 48.00 35.10
May-18 35,993.53 34,302.89 1,32,048 47.00 34.80
Jun-18 35,877.41 34,784.68 1,46,703 39.80 28.50
Jul-18 37,644.59 35,106.57 2,05,795 39.80 25.00
Aug-18 38,989.65 37,128.99 2,77,988 38.50 25.85
Sep-18 38,934.35 35,985.63 1,25,437 34.85 25.75
Oct-18 36,616.64 33,291.58 2,11,662 26.80 18.90
Nov-18 36,389.22 34,303.38 2,03,488 34.80 21.55
Dec-18 36,554.99 34,426.29 3,54,026 35.70 27.25







DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY

The Company’s shares are currently traded only in dematerialized form at The Bombay Stock
Exchange Ltd. To facilitate trading in dematerialised form, the Company has tied up arrangements
with both the present depositories’ viz. National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) & Central
Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL). Shareholders can open Demat Account with any
Depository participant registered with any of these depositories. As on 31% March, 2019 about 100
% of the Company’s shares were held in dematerialized form.

OUTSTANDING GDRS /ADRS/WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS

There were no outstanding GDRs /ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments.

PLANT LOCATION

Company has the following manufacturing and operating divisions

UNIT1.A-243 (A), Road No. 6, V. K. 1. Area, Jaipur — 302013
UNIT2.G-685, Road No. 9F2, V. K. 1. Area, Jaipur — 302013
UNIT3.F-263, Road No.13, V. K. I. Area, Jaipur - 302013
UNIT4.SP-41D, Kaladera Industrial Area, Tehsil Chomu, District Jaipur

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE FOR SHARE TRANSFER AND RELATED MATTERS

For any assistance regarding dematerialization of Shares, Transfer / Transmission of shares,
change of address or any other query relating to shares, the investors may please contact with
the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company at the following address:

BIG SHARE SERVICES PVT LTD

Bharat Tin Works Building, 1st Floor,

Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road,

Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai 400059
Ph.91-22-40430200 Fax No: 91-22-28475207
E-mail: investor@bigshareonline.com

For any other query the investors may please contact to:
Company Secretary

Lawreshwar Polymers Ltd.

A-243(A) Road No.6 V.K.I.Area,

Jaipur - 302013 (Rajasthan)

Tel No: 91-141-4157777

E-mail: csco@leharfootwear.com

DECLARATION

This is to confirm that all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management as adopted
by the Board.




Ravi Sharma & Co.

Chartered Accountants ‘ \
O \

3580, JOHRI BAZAR,
MSB KA RASTA,

4™ CROSSING, JAIPUR,
RAJASTHAN-302003
Ph.9351258175

Independent Auditor’s Report

To
The Members of
Lawreshwar Polymers Limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion
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v_and Statement of Cash F

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Lawreshwar Polymers Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss

xplanations given to us, the aforesaid
mpanies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
' the accounting principles generally
-ch 2019, and profit (including other
ended on that date.

As) specified under Section 143(10) of
\uditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
re independent of the Company in
ccountants of India together with the
ncial statements under the provisions
cal responsibilities in accordance with
idence we have obtained is sufficient

w.r.t. fire at Kaladera Plant. The same
est judgement estimates.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the e
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Cc
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 Mal
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year:

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (S.
the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the /
of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We a
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered A
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone fina
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethi
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit ev
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No. 5 regarding accounting of Insurance claim
has been accounted for on the basis of Surveyor’s Report/ Management b

Our opinion is not modified with respect to above matter.










Ravi Sharma & Co. |/ A 3580, JOHRI BAZAR,
MSB KA RASTA,
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= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.
The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be
commented upon by us.

Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
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b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 11",

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2019 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 33 to the standalone
financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long term contract including derivatives contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

For Ravi Sharma & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 015143C

{CA Paras Bhatia)
Partner

M.No. 418196

Date: 27" May 2019
Place: Jaipur
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Annexure | to the Independent Auditors’ Report

With reference to the Annexure | referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the
Company on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, we report the following:

(i) {a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including guantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

{b) All the assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and there is a
regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the company and the nature of its assets, No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

{¢) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the hame of the company.

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification is reasonable.

{b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records
were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

{c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of inventory, the company is maintaining proper records of
inventory. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book
records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3{iii)(a), {b) & (c) of the order are not applicable to the company.

{iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 In respect of
loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given.

{v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public within the meaning of the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, Provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act, any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder.

(vi) According to the information & explanation given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of manufacture of its products by the company.
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(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax,
Goods and Services tax, duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities
except for a few delays.

3 mi\ vir T aevrorenandn srig CRELAMIOONS Dwon 10 us, T Und prrrf G AT ﬁjcj“i;L it
respect of the aforesaid due were outstanding as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than
six months from the date of becoming payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no pending dues of
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services tax, duty of
Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues which are not deposited on account of
dispute.

(viii) According to information and explanation given to us by the management, as on balance sheet
date the company is not in default w.r.t. repayment of loans and borrowings to a financial
institutions, banks or government, further the company has not issued any debentures.

(ix) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management during the year under review, the company did not raised moneys by way of initial
public offer or further public offer including debt instruments. To the best of our knowledge and
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(xiii) According to information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the records

of the company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of the Act, and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the records
of the company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

{xv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the records
of the company, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

{xvi) According to information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to be
registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 {(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon

For Ravi Sharma & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 015143C

Sd/-
(CA Paras Bhatia)
Partner
M.No. 418196
Date: 27" May 2019
Place: Jaipur
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Lawreshwar Polymers Limited

REGD OFFICE: A-243(A), ROAD NO.6, V.K.I.LAREA, JAIPUR 302013, PHONE:0141-4157777
Website: www_leharfootwear.com, E-mail: info@leharfootwear.com, CIN: L19201RJ1994PLC008196

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019

(Rupees in Lakhs)

S. . As at March 31,
No. Particulars Note No. 2019 As at March 31, 2018
| |ASSETS
(1) [Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 3 5471.50 5260.19
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 - 112.20
(c) Intangible Asset 3 2.72 2.72
(d) Financial Assets
{i) Loans & Advances 4 16.10 17.92
{ii) Other Financial Assets 5 - -
(e) Other non-current assets 6 94.08 84.63
Total Non-current Asset 5584.40 5477.66
(2) |Current assets
{(a) Inventories 7 2933.98 3044.32
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivable 8 2693.35 2914.69
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 267.58 87.23
(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above - -
{iii) Loans & Advances 4 3.15 32.38
{iv) Other Financial Asset 5 1092.31 1189.61
{c )Other current assets 6 467.96 511.03
Total Current Asset 7458.33 7779.26
Total Assets 13042.73 13256.92
1. |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) |EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 10 1367.88 1367.88
{b) Other Equity 11 4278.19 4080.19
Total Equity 5646.07 5448.07
(2) |Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabhilities
{i) Borrowings 12 809.16 897.31
(b) Provisions 13 25.14 6.20
{c ) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 14 612.25 605.89
Total Non-current Liabilities 1446.55 1509.40
(3) |Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 2855.20 3061.64
(ii) Trade Payables 16 2318.49 2244.10
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 17 591.80 865.93
{b) Provisions 13 108.46 76.95
{c ) Other current liabilities 18 76.16 50.83
Total Current Liabilities 5950.11 6299.45
Total Liabilities 7396.66 7808.85
Total Equity and Liabilities 13042.73 13256.92
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 1to 36

As per our Report of even date
For Ravi Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(FRN 015143C)

Sd/-
{Paras Bhatia)
Parther
M.No. 418196
Date: 27th May 2019
Place: Jaipur

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
LAWRESHWAR POLYMERS LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
Ramesh Chand Agarwal Naresh Kumar Agarwal
{Chairman) {Executive Director)
DIN: 00108287 DIN: 00106649

Sd/- Sd/-
Rakesh Kumar Soni Geetika Bisht

(Chief Financial Officer) {Company Secretary)
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FOOTWEAR —
Lawreshwar Polymers Limited
REGD OFFICE: A-243(A), ROAD NO.6, V.K.I. AREA, JAIPUR 302013, PHONE:0141-4157777
Website: www.leharfootwear.com, E-mail: info@leharfootwear.com, CIN: L19201RJ1994PLC008196
Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year ended on 31st March 2019
(Rupees in Lakhs)
S. i Note No. | Year ended 31| Year ended 31
No. Particulars March 2019 March 2018
I. |Revenue from operations 19 9396.12 7454.89
Il. |Other income 20 68.73 46.96
IIl. |Total Revenue {l + I1) 9464.85 7501.85
V. |Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 21 5184.96 5353.56
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 708.03 216.10
Changes in inventaries of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-
Trade 22 226.33 (816.81)
Employee Benefits Expense 23 493.69 363.64
Finance costs 24 477.54 453.16
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 298.41 287.82
Other expenses 26 1727.72 1409.13
Total expenses 9116.68 7266.60
V. |Profit before exceptional items and tax (lll-1V) 348.17 235.25
VI. |Exceptional items 43.75 -
VII. [Profit before tax (V- V1) 304.42 235.25
VIII. [Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 27 76.22 62.40
(2) Deferred tax 27 7.74 {22.53)
Total Tax Expenses 83.96 39.87
IX |Profit {Loss) for the period 220.46 195.38
Other Comprehensive Income
(a)|(i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of Defined Employee Benefit Plans (5.00) {10.08)
{ii)iIncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 1.39 0.30
profit or loss
{b)|{i)ltems that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss -
{iijincome tax relating to items that will be reclassified subsequently to -
profit or loss
Total Other Comprehensive income (3.61) (9.78)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 216.85 185.60
X |Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic 28 1.61 1.43
(2) Diluted 28 1.61 1.43

Notes forming part of Financial Statements

As per our Report of even date
For Ravi Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(FRN 015143C)

Sd/-

(CA Paras Bhatia)
Partner

M.No. 418196

Date: 27th May 2019
Place: Jaipur

1&36

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
LAWRESHWAR POLYMERS LIMITED

Sd/-
Ramesh Chand Agarwal
(Chairman)
DIN: 00108287

Sd/-
Rakesh Kumar Soni
{Chief Financial Officer)

Sd/-

Naresh Kumar Agarwal
{Executive Director)
DIN: 00106649

Sd/-

Geetika Bisht
{Company Secretary)
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FOOTWEAR

Lawreshwar Polymers Limited

REGD OFFICE: A-243{A), ROAD NO.6, V.K.LAREA, JAIPUR 302013, PHONE:0141-4157777
Website: www.leharfootwear.com, E-mail: info@leharfootwear.com, CIN: L19201R11934PLC008196

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019| 31 March 2018
A. |Cash flow from Operating Activities
Profit before income tax 304.42 235.25
Adjustment for
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 298.41 287.82
Finance Costs 477.54 453.16
Expected Credit Loss Allowance 12.80 -
Acturial Gain/Loss (5.00) (10.08)
Interest Income 18.17 2.52
Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 110.35 (789.37)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 221.34 171.21
(Increase)/Decrease in financial assets 128.36 380.82
(Increase)/Decrease in non-current assets (9.45) 52.30
(Increase)/Decrease in current assets 43.07 (401.84)
Increase/(Decrease) Provisions 24.04 (7.02)
Increase/(Decrease) other current liabilities (172.65) 568.01
Cash generated from operations 1451.40 942.77
Income Tax paid (62.61) (16.43)
Net cash flow from operating activities 1388.79 926.34
B. |Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase for property, plant and equipments (397.52) (653.51)
Interest Income (18.17) (2.52)
Net cash flow from investing activities {415.69) (656.03)
C. |cash flow from financing activities
Increase in Short Term Borrowings (206.44) 134.95
Increase in Long Term Borrowings (89.40) (63.26)
Finance Costs (477.54) (453.16)
FDDI Subsidy (18.85) 94.04
Net cash flow from financing activities (792.23) (287.44)
Net increase / { decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 180.87 (17.13)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 87.23 104.37
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 267.59 87.23

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, as set out in Ind As 7 'Statement of Cash Flows.
As per our Report of even date

For Ravi Sharma & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants LAWRESHWAR POLYMERS LIMITED
(FRN 015143C)

Sd/- Sd/-

Ramesh Chand Agarwal Naresh Kumar Agarwal
Sd/- {Chairman) (Executive Director)

(CA Paras Bhatia) DIN: 00108287 DIN: 00106649
Parther
M.No. 418196 Sd/- Sd/-
Date: 27th May 2019 Rakesh Kumar Soni Geetika Bisht

Place: Jaipur {Chief Financial Officer)  {Company Secretary)
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2.1

2.2

2.3

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Lawreshwar Polymers Limited (the company) is a public company domiciled in India and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on Bombay
Stock Exchange in India. The company is engaged in manufacturing and selling of a reputed brand
"LEHAR" footwearin domestic and overseas market.

The Board of Directors approved the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 and
authorised forissue on May 27,2019.

Significant accounting policies

The following are the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(referred to as "Ind AS") as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act")
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from
time totime.

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period and
land has been carried at revalued amount, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in
the accounting policy hithertoin use.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees ("INR") which is the Company's
presentation currency and the functional currency for its operations. All financial information
presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest lakhs with two decimal places unless stated
otherwise.

Use of Estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future
periods affected.

Significant judgments and estimates relating to carrying value of assets and liabilities include useful
lives of Property, plant and equipment , impairment of Property, plant and equipment ,
investments , provision for employee benefits and other provisions, recoverability of deferred tax
assets, commitments and contingencies.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non Current

All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of product & activities of the Company and their realization in cash and cash
equwalent the Company has determined its operatlng cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
SO TSSO Dl sl so L o

ied as nen-current assets and liahilities.
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2.5 Recognition of Revenue and Expenditure

P IR WP Y ra ot

atisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of
ot of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The
'oods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of
'd schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract. This variable
mated based on the expected value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable
bgnized only to the extent that it is highly probable that the amount will not be
reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition s resolved.

f products is recognized when the control on the goods have been transferred
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of ex-
gratia are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid when there is a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

b) Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to such benefits.

c) Defined Benefit Plan

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the balance
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Past service cost, both vested and unvested, is recognised as an expense at the earlier of (a)
when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; and (b) when the entity recognises related
restructuring costs or termination benefits.

The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of
the defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from
thic calenlation e limitad 0 thao, peaseetarlue.of ainilehlos spfiueds red endi~tionsda-frtura g shmus cauvmanans,

cantribiffianstatheschems

d)’ Compensated absences

| of the Compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the enc
liability period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as undiscounted
twelve at the balance sheet date. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within
ces are months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related servi
henefif ..tecognised as an arfuarlaji\t determined liahilitv_at the oresent value of the defined.
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odin Taxexpense isthe aggregate amountincluded in the determination of profit or loss for the peri
respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax
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the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.
Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit under Income tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. However, in
case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized. Also, for temporary differences if any
that may arise from initial recognition of goodwill, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
difference can be utilized. In case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax assets are not recognized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
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2.14 Impairment
Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of non- financial assets other than inventories are assessed at each reporting
date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised as an expenses in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell
and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of estimated future cash flows
using a discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels into cash generating units for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. Animpairment loss isreversed only to the extent that asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment had been recognised.

Financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of
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2.17 Cashand Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalentsin the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changesinvalue.

2.18 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the asset, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
the intended use or sale. Interest income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. The borrowing costs other than attributable to qualifying assets are recognised in
the profit orloss in the period in which theyincurred.

2.19 Financialnstruments

The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial asset or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transactions costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sale of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sale of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place. All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either
amortized cost or fairvalue, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of Financial Assets

(i) Einancial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual

. o +:y-m.-,:£ +_l-.: Flnmapmial amrmrod Sl il o o] b mmebs I,_\lnl({,%!(\n{— nun e 4N
omprefiensiveincomeg ———————— (i) Bnoncialassets at faitvaluethroughottier
hrough other comprehensive incomeifitis Afinancial assetis subsequently measured at fair value t
d by both collecting contractual cash flows held within a business model whose objective is achieve
f the financial asset give rise on specified . ‘ and selling financial assets and the contractual terms ¢
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dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

{iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair valued
through profit or loss.

{iv) Financialliobilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the
carrying amounts approximate fairvalue due to the short maturity of these instruments.

{v) Eqguityinstrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
directissue costs.

c) Derecognition

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition
under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the
company's balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contractis discharged or cancelled or
expires.

d) Offsetting of financialinstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheetif thereis a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle ona net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Insurance Claim

Insurance Claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and
to the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect
ultimate collection.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker. The company consider footwear and accessories as its single
segment in which company operates.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
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transactlon between market partmpants at the measurement date. The fair value of an asset or a
~ i ioing ! thA

‘ All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
thatis significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly orindirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurementisunobservable.

2.23 Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"), through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rules, has notified the following new and amendments to Ind ASs which the Company has not
applied as they are effective from April 1, 2019:

IndAS 116—Leases

Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases standard, Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees
and lessors. It introduces on-balance sheet lessee accounting model for lessees. A lessee
recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. The standard also contains enhanced
disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirementsinind AS17.

The Company will adopt Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2019. The
Company will apply the standard to its leases, retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially
applying the standard, recognised on the date of initial application (April 1, 2019). Accordingly, the
Company will not restate comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially
applying this Standard will be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings as on April 1, 2019. On that date, the Company will recognise a lease liability measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments. The right-of-use asset is recognised at its
carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but

discounted using the lessee' smcrementalborrowmgrate asatApril 1,2019. Inaccordance with the
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On transition, the Company will be using the practical expedient provided the standard and
therefore, will not reassess whether a contract, is or contains a lease, at the date of initial
application.
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The Company is in the process of finalising changes to systems and processes to meet the
accounting and reporting requirements of the standard. With effect from April 1, 2019, the
Company will recognise new assets and liabilities for its operating leases of premises and other
assets. The nature of expenses related to those leases will change from lease rent in previous
periods to (a) amortization change for the right-to-use asset, and (b) interest accrued on lease
liability.

Previously, the Company recognised operating lease expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease, and recognised assets and liabilities only to the extent that there was a timing
difference between actual lease payments and the expense recognised.
As a lessor, sublease shall be classified as an operating lease if the head lease is classified as a short

tmavimn lamnmra lia all Athan ~n Whaelk

P FRE TG AV ik eTc SV el e

epeniig Balen

Amendment toind AS 12, Income Taxes:

Statements is being evaluated.

Ind AS 23 —Borrowing Costs

does not expect any impact from this amendment.

ce. shieet’ as on 5BY AP 2019 ThHe impact @t Hie. Appenaix: on .
Statements, as-assessedby the Company;isexpectedtobenot material:

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize income tax consequences o
Tircan of WIS, OLNCE SoMmpreHnrs TR T o loning 1 whiihe T
recognisad those past transactions or cvents. The Company witi apply thase
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1st April 2019. The impact

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding aftel
is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the fur
borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowir
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Lawreshwar Polymers Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Note-4 Financial Asset :Loans & Advances

{Rupees In Lakhs)

Particular

Long Term

Short Term

As at 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

As at 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

Unsecured considered goods
Security Deposit

Others Parties 16.10 17.92 - 10.50
Loans to Employees - - 3.15 6.30
Other Loans & Advances (Unsecured,
considered good) - - - 15.58

Total 16.10 17.92 3.15 32.38
Note-5 Financial Asset : Other Financial Asset
R Long Term Short Term
Particular
As at 31-03-2019| As at 31-03-2018| As at 31-03-2019| As at 31-03-2018
Insurance Claim Receivable {Unit IV)** - - 1060.04 1047.09
Insurance Claim Receivable {Unit I)¥* - - - 111.75
Duty Drawback Receivable - - 2.12 3.16
1GST Refundable on Export - - 20.01 2271
MEIS Credit Receivable - - 4.30 -
Insurance Palicies for Compensated Absence - - 5.84 4.90
Total - - 1092.31 1189.61

*The company has entered into full & final settlement with Insurance company pertaining to the insurance claim w.r.t. Loss by fire at the factory
premises of the company in Fy 2007-08 and has received Rs 68 lacs in Jan 2019 against a balance O/s of Rs 111.75 lakhs , Balance amount of Rs 43.75

lakhs has been debited to P&L account and shown as exceptional item.

**0On 15th May 2016, a major fire occurred at the kaladera plant of the company which was fully insured and the management has debited the amount
of loss against material damage (stock/ fixed assets) to the insurance claim receivable account. During the year under review the company has also
lodged the claim against Business Interruption policy w.r.t. above fire. Further during the year under review the surveyor appointed by the insurance
company have submitted their final report for material damage claim, based on such report and management's best judgement estimates of claim under
business Interruption policy the management has transferred the net gain (net of above claims basis) amounting to Rs.12.95 lacs to profit and loss

account.

Note-6 Other Asset

Long Term Short Term
Particular As at 31-03-2019 | As at 31-03-2018 | As at 31-03-2019| As at 31-03-2018
GST Input Tax Credit - - 266.17 360.12
Advance to Suppliers & Other Parties 94.08 84.63 40.13 31.78
Advance Income Tax & TDS Receivable - - 155.24 112.19
Prepaid Expenses - - 6.42 6.94
Total 94.08 84.63 467.96 511.03

Note-7 Inventories

As at 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

Particular
Raw materials 723.89 632.43
Work-in-progress; 918.64 992.00
Finished goods; 1147.30 1301.19
Packing Material 58.43 21.03
Stock-in-trade (in respect of goods acquired for trading) 49.17 48.25
Stores and spares; 35.85 42.45
Diesel/Pet Cack 0.70 6.97
Total 2933.98 3044.32

Note-8 Trade Receivable

Particular

As at 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Related Parties 64.17 -
Others 2629.18 2914.69
Total 2693.35 2914.69
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Lawreshwar Polymers Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Note-9 Cash & Cash Equivalent

(Rupees In Lakhs)

Particular

As at 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with banks 150.25 0.19
Cash on Hand 57.50 66.65
Other Bank Balances (Earmarked)
Balances with banks held as Margin Money on ILC/FLC/BG and other commitments 59.83 20.39

Total 267.58 87.23
Note-10 Equity Share Capital

Particular As at 31-03-2019 |As at 31-03-2018

Authorised
15000000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 1500.00 1500.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up 1367.88 1367.88
(1,36,78,799 Equity Shares
of Rs. 10/-each, fully paid up)

Total 1367.88 1367.88
Note 10.1 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity Shares As at 31-03-2019 As at 31-03-2018
Number Amount Number Amount

At the beginning of the period 13678799 1367.88 13678799 1367.88
Issued during the period - - - -
Bought back during the period - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 13678799 1367.88 13678799 1367.88

Note 10.2 Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares
The company has only one class of Equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Note 10.3 Details of Shareholders holding mare than 5% equity shares in the Company

As at 31-03-2019 As at 31-03-2018
Shareholder
Number % Holding Number % Holding
Promoters and Promoter Group
Naresh Kumar Agarwal 1195704 8.741 1195704 8.741
Raj Kumar Agarwal 1454284 10.632 1454284 10.632
Santra Devi Agarwal 1137813 8.318 1137813 8.318
Pramod Kumar Agarwal 1100936 8.048 1100936 8.048
Ramesh Chand Agarwal 2019170 14.761 2019170 14.761
Total 6907907 50.500 6907907 50.500
Note-11 Other Equity
Security R Remeasurement
. N General R R Revaluation )
Particular Premium Retained Earning | Deferred Income of net defined
Reserve Surplus N
Reserve benefit Plans
Balance as at 1 April 2018 660.53 100.15 1530.95 94.04 1653.21 {8.69)
Profit for the year/Transfer to Reserve - - 220.46 {18.85) - -
Amount transfer from Deffered Tax
Liability to Revaluation Reserve - - - - - -
Other Comprehensive income - - - -
-~ N ar e L
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Revaluation surplus: The revaluation surplus is crated out of the revaluation of land owned by the company.

General Reserve: The general reserve comprises of transfer of profits from retained earnings for appropriate purposes. The reserve can be distributed/

utilised by the company in accordance with the Companies Act,2013

Profit and Loss Account: It represents the surplus amount available in profit and loss as retained earnings. The reserve can be distributed/ utilised by the

company in accordance with the Companies Act,2013

Deferred Income : It represent the capital receipt of government grant from FDDI against the investment of Plant and machinery at Kaledra Unit.
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Lawreshwar Polymers Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Rupees In Lakhs)
Note-12 Lonhg Term Borrowings
Non Current Portion Current Maturities
Particular As at 31-03-2019 | As at 31-03-2018 | As at 31-03-2019| As at 31-03-2018
Term Loan | - PNB 263.15 394.71 134.73 136.28
Term Loan - SIDBI - - - 35.32
Term Loan Il - PNB - 47.04 47.44 52.38
Term Loan Ill - PNB 2590.48 - 55.94 -
Term Loan IV - PNB 136.41 - 47.78 -
Buyer Credit for Capital Goods - PNB - 176.60 - 46.20
Deferred Vehicle Loans from various banks 29.28 29.46 21.54 43.41
Other Intercorporate Loan 86.92 246.42 - -
ICICI Bank Limied 2.92 - 32.30 -
Capital First Limited - 3.08 2.41 33.79
Total 809.16 897.31 346.14 347.38
The above amount includes
Secured borrowings 718.31 647.81 311.43 313.59
Unsecured Borrowings - -
From Related Parties 15.00 179.95 - -
From Others 70.85 69.54 34.71 33.79
Amount Disclosed under Current Maturity of Long term Borrowing Under
Note No.17 Other Financial Liability - - (346.14) (347.38)
Total 809.16 897.31 - -

AN Tearm Loan from Capital Firet 1 |

{1) Term Loan | from Punjab National Bank is secured against mortgagge of factory land & building situated at SP-41D, RIICO Industrial Area, Kaladera,
Teh-Chomu, Distt.-Jaipur registered in the name of the company, and G-1-685, Road No. 9F2, VKI Area, Jaipur-302013 registered in the name of
Larweshwar Footwear (related party) and also personal guarantee of directors and other related parties.

Term Loan - | of Rs. 9.21 Lakhs sanctioned from Punjab National Bank is repayable in 84 equal monthly instalimets of Rs. 10.96 Lakhs started from April
2015 carrying interest rate @ 9.45%.

{ll}) Term Loan from SIDBI is sanctioned of Rs. 400 Lakhs and amount disbursed Rs. 200 Lakhs is secured against residual charge on movable and current
assets of the company and personal guarantee of directors and other related parties, and is reapyable in 36 monthly instalments of Rs. 5.50 Lakhs and
one installment of Rs. 2.00 Lakhs started from october 2015.

{lll) Term Loan Il from Punjab National Bank is secured against mortgagge of factory land & building situated at SP-41D, RIICO Industrial Area -, Kaladera,
Teh-Chomu, Distt.-Jaipur registered in the name of the company, and G-1-685, Road No. 9F2, VKI Area, Jaipur-302013 registered in the name of
Larweshwar Footwear (related party) and also personal guarantee of directors and other related parties.

Term Loan - Il of Rs. 150 Lakhs sanctioned from Punjab National Bank is repayable in 34 equal monthly installments of Rs. 4.29 Lakhs and one
instalment of Rs. 4.14 Lakhs started from April 2017 carrying interest rate @ 9.45%.

{IV) Term Loan -Ill and Buyers Credit for Capital Goods from Punjab National Bank is secured against hypothecation of respective machineries imported
under buyers credit and all other securities available for FB limit and term loan, and Buyers Cerdit for Capital Goods has converted into term loan from
20 April 2018 and is payable in 15 equal quarterly installments of Rs. 11.55 Lakhs and one quarterly installment of Rs. 9.36 Lakhs carrying rate of interest
@ 9.60%.

{V) Term Loan IV from Punjab National Bank is secured against mortgagge of factory land & building situated at SP-41D, RIICO Industrial Area, Kaladera,
Teh-Chomu, Distt.-Jaipur registered in the name of the company, and G-1-685, Road No. 9F2, VKI Area, laipur-302013 registered in the name of
Larweshwar Footwear (related party) and also personal guarantee of directors and other related parties.

Term Loan - IV of Rs. 400 Lakhs sancticned from Punjab National Bank is repayable in 84 equal monthly installments of Rs. 4.76 Lakhs started from May
2018 carrying interest rate @ 9.60%.

{VI) Term Loan from ICICI Bank is unsecured and amount sanctioned Rs. 40 Lakhs repayable in 15 EMI of Rs. 2.96 Lakhs started from February 2019
carrying rate of interest @ 15.50%.

waceriwed and amoupt, canctinnad Re &Nl akhe ranavahla in 12 EMI Af Re 2 80 1 akhe startad fro

Ty P
hication of respective vehicles carrying interest rate in the range of @ 8.50% to 13%. {VIll) Deferred Vehicle Loans are secured against hypot
D 15%. {IX) Inter corporate loans are carrying interest rate of ¢
Note-13 Provisions
Long Term Short Term
As at 31-03-2019 | As at 31-03-2018 | As at 31-03-2019| As at 31-03-2018 Particular
{a) Provision for Employees Benefit
12.34 6.20 0.68 - {i) Provision for Gratuity
- - 10.38 4.53 (i) Provision for Compensated Absence
- - 14.82 5.53 {iii) Provision for Bonus
- - 76.33 62.72 ( b) Provision for Income Tax
- - 6.25 4.17 (c) Provision for Expenses
12.80 - - - (d) Provision for Expected Credit Loss
25.14 6.20 108.46 76.95 Total
vhich premium has been paid to LIC, and partly made provision for gratuity on actuarial valaution The company has taken partly gratuity policy against v
basis.
.
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Note-14 Deferred Tax Liability (Net)

(Rupees In Lakhs)

Particular

As at 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

Deferred Tax Liability

Related to Fixed Assets 234.27 221.12

Related to Revaluation of Land 386.42 391.89

Deferred Tax Assets

Related to Employee Benefit Expenses 4.88 453

Related to Exchange Fluctuation on Buyers Credit - 2.59

Related to Expected Credit Loss 3.56 -
Tatal 612.25 605.89

Note-15 Short-term Borrowings

Particular

As at 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

Cash Credit from Punjab National Bank {Secured)*
Unsecured Loan from banks and financial institutions**

Aditya Birla Finance Ltd

ICICI Bank Ltd.

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

Tata Capital Financial Services Limited

Equias Small Finance Bank Limited

Magma Fincorp Limited

Capfloat Financial Services Limited

Capital First Limited

American Express Credit Card Loan

Total

2630.83 2957.57
42.02 -

- 27.61
22.52 20.65
41.74 25.65

- 30.16
21.36 -
42.01 -
53.82 -

0.90 -

2855.20 3061.64

*Cash Credit Limit from Punjab National Bank is secured against hypothecation of Raw Material, Finished Goods, Stock in Process, Store & Spares,
Packing Material and book debts, mortgage over fixed assets of the Company & mortgage of certain fixed assets of the related parties and personal
guarantees of Directors and other related parties and residual charge over the immovable property of the company which are mortgaged for the term

loans from Punjab National Bank carrying interest rate of @ 9.45%.

** Unsecured loans from various banks and financial institutions are carrying interest rate range between @ 15% to 17.5%.

Note-16 Trade Payable

Particular

As at 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

Sundry Creditors for Raw Material and Packing Material 2093.44 2017.13
Sundry Creditors for Consumable Store and Traded Goods 90.65 118.32
Sundry Creditors for Expenses 134.40 108.65

Total 2318.49 2244.10

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

Particular

As at 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

Amount Due to Vendor
Interest due and Payable for the year
Interest accrued and remain unpaid

16.92
0.41
0.41

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the
management. No figures are available for previous year as the company was in process of identifying and collecting the information.

Note-17 Financial Liability - Other

As at 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

Particular

Trade Payable for Capital Goods 176.85 473.92

Current_ maturities of long-term 346.14 347.38

borrowings

Outstanding Expenses 48.40 28.47

Other Current Financial Liability 20.41 16.16
Total 591.80 865.93
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Note-18 Other Current Liability

(Rupees In Lakhs)

Particular As at 31-03-2019| As at 31-03-2018
Advances from customers 60.94 37.28
Statutory Liabilities 15.22 13.55

Total 76.16 50.83

Note-19 Revenue From Operation

Particular

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

Sale of products

Finished Goods & Traded Goods 8931.06 7444.57
Export Sales 656.16 338.12
Other Operating Revenue 67.90 35.09
Revenue from Operation (Gross) 9655.12 7817.78
Less: Discount 259.00 362.89
Revenue from Operation (Net) 9396.12 7454.89

Note-20 Other Income
Year ended Year ended

Particular

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Interest Income on

Bank Deposits 2.10 1.54
Other Interest 18.17 2.52
Exchange Flactuation Gain 13.51 2.95
Discount Received 2.63 12.82
Subsidy from FDDI 18.87 25.26

Gain on Insurance Claim 12.95 -
Miscellaneous Income 0.50 1.87
Total 68.73 46.96

Note-21 Cost of Material Consumed

Year ended Year ended

Particular

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Raw Materials Consumed

Opening Stock 632.43 657.14
ADD: Purchases 4819.13 4855.59
5451.56 5512.73
Less: Closing Stock 723.89 632.43
Less: Transfer to GST Credit - 56.71
Total [A] 4727.67 4823.59
Packing Materials Consumed

Opening Stock 21.03 43.22
ADD: Purchases 494.69 514.02
515.72 557.24
Less: Transfer to GST Credit - 6.24
Less: Closing Stock 58.43 21.03
Total [B] 457.29 529,97
Cost of Material Consumed Total [A+B] 5184.96 5353.56

Note-22 Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade
Year ended Year ended

Particular

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Opening Stock

Finished Goods 1301.19 759.69
Work-in-Progress 992.00 718.59
Stock-in-Trade 48.25 45.34
Tatal [I] 2341.44 1524.62
Closing Stock

Finished Goods 1147.30 1301.19
Work-in-Progress 918.64 992.00
Stock-in-Trade 49.17 48.25
Total [111] 2115.11 2341.43

Change in inventories Total [I-I-111] 226.33 (816.81)
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Godown Rent - 0.50
Tender and Technical Testing Fees 6.20 0.28
TOTAL [C] 201.38 52.99
GRAND TOTAL [A+B+C] 1727.72 1409.13

Note-26.1 Payment to Statutory Auditor

Year ended

Year ended

Particular 31 March 2019| 31 March 2018
Audit Fees 6.00 3.63
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.19 0.29

Total 6.19 3.92

Note-27 Income Tax Recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended Year ended

Particular

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Lurrent Tax
In respect of Current year

Regular Tax 76.33 62.72
In respect of earlier year {0.11) {0.32)
Total Current tax 76.21 62.40
Deferred Tax 7.74 {22.53)

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate
summarized below:

to the income before income taxes is

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Profit before income taxes 304.42 235.25
Enacted tax rate in India 27.82% 33.06%
Computed expected tax expenses 84.69 77.77
Effect of Allowances for tax purpose (101.49) (113.89)
Effect of Non deductible expenses 93.13 98.83
Others {0.11) (0.32)
Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 76.21 62.40

The movement of deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2019

Credit/ (Charge)

Credit / (Charge)

. N N in Other As at 31st March,
Particular As at 1 April, 2018| in statement of .
. Comprehensive 2019
Profit and Loss
Income
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)
Depreciation (221.13) (13.16) - (234.29)
Gratuity & Compensated Absence 4.53 {1.03) 1.39 4.89
Expected Credit Loss - 3.56 - 3.56
Exchnage Fluctuation Loss on Buyers Credit 2.59 {2.59) - -
Revaluation of Land {391.89) 5.48 - (386.41)
Total (605.90) (7.74) 1.40 (612.25)
Note-28 Earning Per Share
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Profit after tax 220.46 195.38
Weighted average no. of Equity Share Outstanding 13678799 13678799
Nominal value of Qrdinary share(INR) 10 10
Basic & diluted earning per share in rupees 1.61 1.43
Note-29 Lease
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
As Lessee:-

Disclosure in respect of premises taken on operating lease by the company :

The company has entered into operating lease for its warehouses that age renewable on a periodic basis and
cancelled at the company's option

(a) Lease payment recognised in Profit & Loss A/c

(b) Future Lease payments:

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

61.32

59.40
237.60

58.80

59.40
237.60
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Note-30 Employee Benefit

{A) Defined Contribution Plan:-

The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees. Contributions are made to registered provident fund
and Employee state insurance administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no
further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

Contribution to provident fund and other fund recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

19.70

19.09

{B) Defined Benefit Plan:-

Gratuity

In accordance with the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the company has defined benefit plan which provides for gratuity payment. The plan
provides a lump sum gratuity payment to eligible employees at retirement or termination of their employment. The amounts are based on the
respective employee's last drawn salary and the year of employment with the company. The gratuity plan is a partially funded plan.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: Investment, Interest rate, longevity and salary risk:

Investment risk: The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

Interest risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the
plan’s debt investments.

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
during their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary escalation risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such,
an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

No other post-retirement benefits are provided to the employees.

The actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2019 by a certified
actuary of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service
cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

Compensated Absence

Compensated absence liability recognised as expense for the year is Rs. 10.38 Lakhs {Previous Year Rs. 6.67 Lakhs). The above is based on actuarial
valuation report. The report considers assumptions with respect to discount rates, salary escalation, retirement age, mortality, rate of leaving service,
leave availment pattern, disability and other relevant factors. the method used is Projected unit Credit Method.

Assumptions:

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations are given below:

Compensated Absence Gratuity
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Discount Rate 7.75% 7.75% 7.75% 7.75%
Future Salary growth rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.75 7.75 7.75 7.75
Mortality table used IALM 2006-08 IALM 2006-08 IALM 2006-08 IALM 2006-08
Projected Benefit Obligation
Compensated Absence Gratuity
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Projected benefit Obligation at beginning of the year 6.67 4.53 17.48 9.68
Interest Cost 0.52 0.35 1.35 0.75
Current Service Cost 3.10 1.62 6.58 3.97
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 0.76 1.52 2.67 9.84
Benefits paid {0.66) {1.35) {1.79) {6.76)
Projected benefit Obligation at end of the year 10.39 6.67 26.29 17.48
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet:
Compensated Absence Gratuity

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet:

Projected benefit Obligation at end of the year 10.38 6.68 26.29 17.48
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at year end

5.84 4.90 13.27 12.20
Net (Asset)/Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 4.54 1.78 13.02 5.28
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Cost of the defined benefit plan for the year:

{Rupees In Lakhs)

Compensated Absence Gratuity
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2013
Current Service Cost 3.10 1.62 6.58 3.97
Interest Cost 0.52 0.35 1.35 0.75
Expected Return on plan Asset {0.38) {0.42) (0.95) {1.16)
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in the Statement of Profit & 3.24 1.55 6.98 3.56
Loss
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Compensated Absence Gratuity

Particulars

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Experience Adjustment (gain)/ loss for Plan Liabilities 0.76 - 2.675 -
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Other Comprehensive 0.76 2.675 -
Income -
Total cost of the defined benefit plan for the year 4.00 1.55 9.658 3.56
Experience Adjustment
Compensated Absence Gratuity

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

Particulars

Present value of defined benefit obligation 10.39 6.67 26.29 17.48
Fair Value of plan assets 5.84 4.90 13.27 12.20
Balance Sheet (Liability)/ Asset 4.54 1.78 13.02 5.28
P&L {Income)/ expenses 3.24 1.55 6.98 3.56
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (gain)/ loss 0.76 0.00 2.67 9.84
Experience adjustment on plan assets gain/ (loss) - - {0.01) (0.24)
Sensitivity analysis in respect of the actuarial assumptions used in calculation of defined benefit obligation are given below:
Compensated Absence Gratuity

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

Discount rate - 1% increase
Discount rate - 1% decrease
Salary Growth rate - 1% increase
Salary Growth rate - 1% decrease
Withdrawal rate - 1% increase
Withdrawal rate - 1% decrease

9.66 6.15
11.22 7.28
11.23 7.29

9.64 6.13
10.55 6.79

1.20 6.54

24.46
28.40
28.44
24.39
26.48

16.10
19.07
19.10
16.05
17.65

26.07

17.28

Note-31 Capital Management

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt and total equity of the Company. The Company manages its capital to ensure that the
Company will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through an optimum mix of debt and equity within the
overall capital structure. The Company’s risk management committee reviews the capital structure of the Company considering the cost of capital and

the risks associated with each class of capital.

Note-32 Related Party Disclosures

The Company has made the following transactions with related parties as defined under the provisions of Indian Accounting Standard-24 issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

List of related parties with whom transcation have taken place during the year along with the nature and volume of transaction is given below fro

01.04.2018 to 31.03.2018.

Particulers

Relation

Directors & Key managerial persons & their associate concerns

Ramesh Chand Agarwal
Raj Kumar Agarwal
Naresh Kumar Agarwal
Sanjay Kumar Agarwal
Rakesh Kumar Soni
Geetika Bisht

Gauri Shankar Kandoi
Sidhartha Singh

Preeti Goyal

Relatives

Megha Agarwal
Megha Lodha

Naveen Agarwal
Pramod Agarwal

Pankaj Agarwal

Chairman of the company
MD of the company
Executive Director of the company
Chief Executive Officer of the Company
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Relations with Directors
Wife of Executive Director
Daughter in law of Managing Director
Son of Chairman
Brother of Chairman of the company
Son of Managing Director
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Shailly Agarwal Daughter in law of Managing Director
Prateek Agarwal Nephew of Chairman of the company
Lakshita Agarwal Daughter of Executive Director
Jai Shree Agarwal Daughter in law of Chairman
Enterprises owned/controlled by Relations with Directors
Lawreshwar Footcare Pvt. Ltd. Directors are sharehaolders of this company
Lawreshwar Footwear Proprietorship concern of Chairman’s son
Jai Narayan Mohan Lal & Sons Proprietorship concern of Chairman’s Brother
Raj Shoe Palace Proprietorship concern of MD
P.K. Shoe Co. Proprietorship concern of Chairman’s Brother
Ramesh Footwear Proprietorship concern of Chairman
Naveen Footwear Proprietorship concern of Chairman’s son
N.K. Footwear Proprietorship concern of EDs HUF
R.K. Boothouse Proprietorship concern of MDs HUF
M.L. Boot House Proprietorship concern of Chairman's Father’'s HUF
S. D. Footwear Proprietorship concern of Mother of Chairman
Transaction with key management persons
Nature of transaction 2018-19 2017-18
Remuneration 113.41 96.60
Out of the above items, transactions in excess of 10% of the total related party transactions are as under:
Ramesh Chand Agarwal 25.70 24.42
Raj Kumar Agarwal 25.70 24.42
Naresh Kumar Agarwal 25.69 24.44
Sanjay Kumar Agarwal 15.34 14.07
Rakesh Kumar Soni 17.21 0.00
Transaction with relatives
Nature of transaction 2018-19 2017-18
Salary 71.23 71.66
Out of the above items, transactions in excess of 10% of the total related party transactions are as under:
Pankaj Agarwal 12.22 12.22
Pramod Agarwal 21.29 21.22
Prateek Agarwal 8.02 8.02
Enterprises owned & controlled by the Directors and their relatives
Nature of transaction 2018-1% 2017-18
Rent Paid 559.40 58.80
Donation 7.88 6.91
Sales 103.17 89.99
Loan Received 211.60 241.00
Loan Repaid 384.53 161.12
Interest Paid 13.31 17.39
QOut of the above items, transactions in excess of 10% of the total related party transactions are as under:
Rent Paid
Lawreshwar Footwear 9.00 9.00
Lawreshwar Footcare Pvt. Ltd. 50.40 45.80
Donation
Jai Narayan Mohan Lal Charitable Trust 3.97 4.65
Lawreshwar Mahadev Mandir Trut 3.92 2.26
Sales
Ramesh Footwear 14.37 3.77
Naveen Footwear 15.05 18.01
N.K. Footwear 14.91 19.03
M.L. Boot House 14.94 0.00
S.D. Footwear 15.37 24.97
R. K. Boothouse 14.40 24.22
P.K. Shoe Co. 14.12 0.00
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Loan Received

Lawreshwar Footcare Pvt. Ltd. 211.60 241.00
Loan Repaid

Lawreshwar Footcare Pvt. Ltd. 384.53 161.12
Interest Paid

Lawreshwar Footcare Pvt. Ltd. 13.31 17.39
Note-33 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the company / disputed liabilities not acknowledged as debts 20.00 Nil
Bank Guarantee 177.93

Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Nil Nil

There are two pending litigation against the company but these will not impact the financial position of the company.

Note 34: Fair Value Measurement

Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Amortised cost | Carrying value | Amortised cost | Carrying value

Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables 2693.35 2693.35 2914.69 2914.69
(ii) Loans 19.25 18.25 50.30 50.30
(iii) Others 1092.31 1092.31 1189.61 1189.61
{(iv) Cash & cash equivalents 267.58 267.58 87.23 87.23
Total 4072.49 4072.49 4241.83 4241.83
Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 3664.36 3664.36 3958.95 3958.95
(i) Trade payables 2318.49 2318.49 2244.10 2244.10
{(iii) Other financial liabilities 591.80 591.80 865.93 865.93
Total 6574.65 6574.65 7068.98 7068.98

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available. The fair
values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1) Fair value of cash and deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

2) Long-term variable-rate borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, credit risk
and other risk characteristics. Fair value of variable interest rate borrowings approximates their carrying values. Risk of other factors for the company is
considered to be insignificant in valuation.

Note 35: Financial Risk Management
Financial risk management policy and objectives

The key objective of the Company’s financial risk management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with the focus on total equity to
uphold investor, creditor, and customer confidence and to ensure future development of its business. The Company is focused on maintaining a strong
equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if required without impacting the risk profile
of the Company.

Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise Borrowings from Banks, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finipazlomnin:
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Company is-exposed to market risk, credit risk and' lguidity risk.

The Company's Board oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s Board is supported by senior management team that advises on financial
risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The senior management provides assurance to the Company’s Board
that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and
managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

i) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk

comprises three types of risk interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include investments in equity
shares, security deposits, trade and other receivables, deposits with banks and financial liabilities.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018. The sensitivity of the relevant income
statement item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.
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a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rate.
The company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions primarily to EURO & USD. Company do not enter into any
derivative instrument in order to hedge its foreign currency risks.

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change by 5% in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Rupees In Lakhs)

Financial Exposure 2018-19 2017-18
Financial liabilities:

USD Converted in Rupees 59.40 278.66
Net expasure 59.40 278.66

Sensitivity Analysis

Currency

Amount in INR 5% increase 5% decrease

As at 31-03- As at 31-03- | Asat 31-03-2018 | As at 31-03-2018 | As at 31-03-2019| As at 31-03-2018
2019 2018

USD Converted in Rupees

59.40 278.66 62.37 292.59 56.43 264.72

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will lead to change in interest income and expense for the Company. In order to
optimize the Company's position with regards to interest income & expense and to manage the interest risk, the Company performs comprehensive
interest risk management by balancing the proportion of fix & variable rate financial instruments.

Particulars As at 31-03-2019| As at 31-03-2018
Fixed rate instruments

Fixed deposit with Banks 59.83 20.39
Barrowings

Vehicle Loans 50.82 72.87
Unsecured Loan From Various bank 262.00 140.93
Inter Corporate Loans 86.92 246.42
Variable rate instruments

Borrowings

Buyers Credit 222.80
Term Loan {PNB) 979.92 630.41
Term Loan (SIDBI) - 35.32
Cash Credit PNB 2630.83 2957.57

Sensitivity analysis:

A change in 50 basis point in interest rate at the reporting date would have increase/(decrease) Profit or Loss by the amount shown below.
This analysis assumes that all other variables, remain constant.

Particulars

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Interest rate - increase/decrease by 50 basis point 18.05 (18.05) 19.23 {19.23)

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

¢) Commodity Risk
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plan and inventory position is monitored in accordance with future price trend.

ii) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk mainly -
its operating activities {primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks.

Credit risk on trade receivables is managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company has no concentration of ri
customer base in widely distributed both econaomically and geographically.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivable
grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on exchange losses historical data. The manxir
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as security.
Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected ¢
loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors such as financial condi
ageing of outstanding and the Company's historical experience for customers.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

{Rupees In Lakhs)

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with Company’s policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Company monitors
rating, credit spreads and financial strength of its counter parties. Company monitors ratings, credit spread and financial strength of its counter parties.
Based oh ongoing assessment Company adjust it's exposure to various counterparties. Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components
of balance sheet is the carrying amount as disclosed in Note 35.

Credit risk exposure

The following table shows the maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date :

as at March 31, 2019

as at March 31, 2018

Particulars
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Loans 16.10 3.15 17.92 32.38
Trade Receivables - 2693.35 - 2914.69
Cash equivalents - 267.58 - 87.22
Other financials assets - 1092.31 - 1189.61
Total 16.10 4056.39 17.92 4223.90

iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash flow obligations without incurring unacceptable losses.
Company's ohjective is to, at all time maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash requirements. Company closely monitors its liquidity position
and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including overdraft, debt from banks at optimised cost and

cash flow from operations.

The table summarises the maturity profile of Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments .

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

Particulars Within 1 year >1 years Total Within 1 year >1 years Total

Borrowings 3285.11 929.54 4214.65 547.69 1009.80 1557.49
Other liabilities 197.26 - 197.26 490.08 - 490.08
Trade and other payable 2366.89 - 2366.89 2272.58 - 2272.58

Note-36

The previous year figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified whenever necessory.

As per our Report of even date
For Ravi Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(FRN 015143C)

Sd/-
{CA Paras Bhatia)
Partner
M.No. 418196
Date: 27th May 2019
Place: Jaipur

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
LAWRESHWAR POLYMERS LIMITED

Sd/-
Ramesh Chand Agarwal
(Chairman)
DIN : 00108287

Sd/-
Rakesh Kumar Soni
{Chief Financial Officer)

Sd/-
Naresh Kumar Agarwal
{Executive Director)
DIN: 00106649

Sd/-
Geetika Bisht
{Company Secretary)




Notice

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Fifth Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of
Lawreshwar Polymers Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Monday, the 30" September,
2019 at 10.30 A.M. at Registered Office at A-243 (A) Road No. 6 V.K.I. Area, Jaipur- 302013 to
transactthe following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2019 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ramesh Chand Agarwal (DIN: 00108287), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To appoint Mr. Sunil Agarwal as an Independent Director and in this regard, pass the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 150, and 152 read with Schedule
IV and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there
under and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations 2015 including
any statutory modifications or re-enactment(s) thereof and any rules made thereunder, for the
time being in force Mr. Sunil Agarwal (DIN: 02587959), who was appointed as an additional and
Independent Director of the company w.e.f April 27, 2019, and whose terms expires at the AGM,
be andis hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the company to hold office for a period
of S5years with effectfrom April 27,2019

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all acts and take all
such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to thisresolution.”

4. Tore-appoint Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal as a Whole-time Director and in this regard, pass the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with
Schedule V and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), approval of
the members be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal (DIN:
00106649) as a Whole-Time Director, designated as Executive Director of the Company, for a
further period of 5 (five) years with effect from September 29,2018;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all acts and take all
such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to thisresolution.”
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To change the name of the Company and in this regard, pass following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 13(2) of the Companies Act 2013 (including any

statntorv madification ar re- Anactment. the

nf for the time hei

arce) and_all nther

Rules LU14‘ Dubsegt to the appmvoal of the Lentrai Government {pawer deiegated to Rq
Companies] and any other Regulatory Authorities as may be necessary, the memb
Company be and is hereby proposed the change in the name of the Company “LAWK
POLYMERS LIMITED” be changed to “LEHAR FOOTWEARS LIMITED” and Claus
Memorandum of Association and the name in the Articles of Association be
accordingly.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the name LAWRESHWAR POLYMERS LIMITED w!
occurs in the Memorandum & Articles of Association and other documents of the Co
substituted by the newname “LEHARFOOTWEARS LIMITED “

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal, Executive Director of the
and Ms. Geetika Bisht, Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby
authorized to file, sign, verify and execute all such e-forms, papers or documents,
required and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary and inci
giving effectto this Resolution.”

To adopt new set of articles of associations as per companies act, 2013 and in this re;
the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and other applicable prt
any of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactme
for the time being in force) and read with rules made there under consent of Memkb
Company be and is hereby accorded to adopt new set of Articles of Association in a
with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 in place of existing Articles of Associat
Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the existing set of Articles of Association of the Company
hereby replaced, altered, modified and revised as per the new set of articles of ass¢
copy of which is placed before the Board of Directors and that the regulation contai
new set of Articles be and are hereby approved and adopted as the Articles of Associa
Company and they be the Regulations of the Company in place, in substitution and to
exclusion ofthe existing Articles of Association.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal, Executive Director of the
and Ms. Geetika Bisht, Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby
authorized to file, sign, verify and execute all such e-forms, papers or documents,
required and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary and inci
giving effectto this Resolution.”




7. Toadoptnew set of memorandum of associations as per companies act, 2013 and in thisregard,
pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and read with applicable provisions of the Companies Rules, 2014
consent of Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to adopt new set of Clauses of
Memorandum of Association of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 in place of the existing Memorandum of Association of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal, Executive Director of the Company
and Ms. Geetika Bisht, Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally
authorized to file, sign, verify and execute all such e-forms, papers or documents, as maybe
required and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary and incidental for
giving effectto this Resolution.”

By the order of the Board
For Lawreshwar Polymers Limited
Sd/-
Ramesh Chand Agarwal
Dated: 20.08.2019 Chairman

Place: Jaipur DIN: 00108287




Notes

1. Amember entitled to attend and vote at the meetingis entitled toappointa proxy/ proxies
to attend and vote instead of himself/herself and such proxy/ proxiesneed not be a member
ofthe company. The instrumentappointing the proxy/proxies should be deposited at
the registered office of the company, duly completed and signed, not less than forty-
eight (48) hours before commencementofthe AGMi.e. by 10:30 A.M.on 30" September,
2019.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent (10%), of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not
actas proxy for another personor shareholder.

Proxies submitted on behalf of Companies, Societies, Partnership Firms, etc. must be
supported by appropriate resolution / authority, as applicable.

2. Information or details pertaining to the Directors proposed to be appointed or re-
appointed pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard-2
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of Indiaare provided in Annexure-A of this
Notice.

3. The Company has notified closure of Register of Members and Share Transfer
Books from Monday, 23™ September, 2019 to Monday, 30" September, 2019 (both days
inclusive) for the purpose of the Annual General Meeting.

4.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market.
Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to
their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company / Big Share Services
Private Limited.

Members holding shares in electronic form may note that bank particulars
registered against their respective depository accounts will be used by the
Company for payment of dividend (if declared). The Company or its Registrar and Transfer
Agent, Big Share Services Private Limited (“Big Share”) cannot act on any request received
directly from the members holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars
or bankmandates. Such changesare tobe advised only to the Depository Participant by the
members.

5. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any change
in their address or bank mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they are
maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to
intimate any change in their address or bank mandates immediately to the company or Big
Share.
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Members are requested to produce the enclosed attendance slip/e-voting form, duly signed as
per the specimen signature recorded with the Company, for admission to the meeting hall.
Members holding shares in dematerialised form are requested to bring their DP-ID and Client-
ID numbers for easier identification for attendance at the meeting.

All documents referred to in the Notice and Explanatory Statement are available for
inspection at the registered office of the Company during the businesshours between 10:30
AM to 6:00 P.M on all working days of the Company up to the date of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company

Members desirous of getting any information on the accounts or operations of the
Company are requested to forward their queries to the Company atleast Ten (10) working days
prior to the meeting, so that the required information can be made available at the meeting.

Members are requested to immediately notify any change in their address either to the
Company or its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. In case the shares are held in
dematerialised form, this information should be sent by the Members to their
respective depository participants. Members are requested to quote their folio numbers / DP-
ID and Client-ID numbers in their correspondence with the Company.

T o,

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.
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Members are requested to furnish or update their e-mail IDs with the Registrar for sending the
soft copies of the Annual Report of the Company as required vide circular no. 17/2011 dated
April 21, 2011 and circular no. 18/2011 dated April 29, 2011 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs and to avail remote e-voting facility in respect of the resolutions which would
be passed atthe General Meetings ofthe Company.

As a matter of economy, copies of the Annual Report will not be distributed at the venue of the
Annual General Meeting. Members are, therefore, requested to bring their copy of the Annual
Reporttothe meeting.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higherin the order
of names will be entitled to vote.

Corporate members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board
Resolutionauthorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their
e-mail address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars,
etc. from the Company electronically.

Pursuant to the prohibition imposed vide Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2)
issued by the ICSIand the MCA circular, no gifts/coupons shall be distributed at the Meeting.
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18.

19.

1L

17.

Members may also note that the notice of 25" Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for
the year 2018-2019 is also available on the website of the company www.leharfootwear.com
for their download.

The route map tothe venue of the Meetingis included in this notice for easylocation.
E-VOTING:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 read with the Companies
(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right
to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 25" Annual General meeting (AGM) by
electronic means.

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall also be made available at the AGM and
members attending the meeting who have not casted their vote by remote
e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.

The members who have casted their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend
the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The remote E-Voting shall remain open on Friday, September 27, 2019 (10:00 A.M. (IST)) till
Sunday, September 29,2019 (5.00 P.M. (IST)).

The Board of Directors has appointed Vinod Kumar Naredi Prop. of M/s. Naredi Vinod &
Associates (Membership No. ACS: 20453 CP NO. 7994), Practising Company Secretary as the
scrutinizer for e-voting, to unblock the votesin favour or against, if any, and to report forthwith
to the Chairman. The scrutinizer shall be responsible to conduct e-voting in fair and
transparent manner.

Any person who become member of the company after dispatch of Notice of the meeting and
holding share as on cut off date may obtain ID Password by following the procedure mention in
the instructions for members for voting electronically as given below.

Members attending the meeting who have not casted their vote by remote e-voting shall be
able to exercise their right at the meeting and that the members who have casted their vote by
remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to
cast their vote agai n. Voting by Members present at the Meeting shall be done by ballot or
polling paper.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at under help section or write and email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. Or company secretary, Lawreshwar Polymers Limited A-
243 (A)Road No.6 VKI Area, Jaipur, 302013 email: csco@leharfootwear.com




The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:-

1.  Thevoting period begins on Friday, September 27, 2019 (10:00 A.M. (IST) and ends on Sunday,
September 29,2019 (5.00 PM. (IST). During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of
Monday, September 23, 2019 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be
disabled by CDSL forvoting thereafter.

2.  Logontothe e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

3. ClickonShareholders

4.  NowEnteryourUserID

a.  ForCDSL: 16digits beneficiary ID,

b.  For NSDL:8Character DPID followed by 8 Digits ClientID,

C Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the
Company.

5.  Nextenterthe Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

6. Ifyou are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to and voted on an earlier voting of
any company, then your existing password is to be used.

7. Ifyouareafirsttime userthen follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

— i g o
TG EVOE







Store respectively on or after 30" June 2016. Please follow the instructions as prompted by
the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

19. Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are
required to log on to www.evotingindia.comand register themselves as Corporate.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login
and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish
to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
and onapproval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued
in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the

scrutinizer to verify the same.

20. Incaseyouhave any queries or issuesregarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help

section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
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additional director of the company w.e.f. 27.04.2019, who holds office up to the date of ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the company.

Notice has been received from member proposing Mr. Sunil Agarwal as candidate for the office of Director
ofthe company. Mr. Sunil Agarwal is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section
164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as Director: Brief resume of Mr. Sunil Agarwal, nature of his
expertise in specific functional area and names of companies in which he hold directorships and
memberships/ chairmanships of Board Committees is as-follows:

Particulars

Name of the Director Sunil Agarwal

Din 02587959

Date of Birth 22.01.1978

Age 41

Date of Appointment 27.04.2019

Qualifications Mr. Sunil Agarwal, aged 41 year old a graduate

in bachelors of commerce from commerce
college, Jaipur. He has a 15 year of experience
in Logistics, Finance and Marketing

Experiencein specific functional areas ) )
P P Finance and Marketing

Directorship held in Other public company Nil

Chairman/Member of the Audit Committee Nil
and Stakeholders’ Grievance Committee in
other public company

Remuneration (sought to be paid) Nil
Number of shares held in the company Nil
Relationship with other directors, manager NA

and KMP of the company

Number of Board meeting attended during Nil

the year

Date of first appointment on the board 27.04.2019

Details of Mr: Sunil Agarwal are provided in “Annexure A” to the Notice pursuant to the provisions of (i) the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and (ii) Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2"), issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India. Mr. Sunil Agarwal being appointee interested in the resolution and none of the other
Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are interested in the
aforesaidresolution.
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The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item no. 3 of the Notice for the approval of
the shareholders.

ItemNo.4:

The Board of Directors of the Company (“the Board”) has, subject to approval of members,
reappointed Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal (DIN: 00106649) as a Whole time Director; designated as
Executive Director, for a further period of 5 (five) years w.e.f September 29, 2018, on terms and
conditions including remuneration as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board and approved by the Board. It is proposed to seek members' approval for
the re-appointment of and remuneration payable to Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal as a Whole time
Director, designated as Executive Director of the Company, in terms of the applicable provisions of
the Act. Brief resume of Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal, nature of his expertise in specific functional
area and names of companies in which he hold directorships and memberships/ chairmanships of
Board Committeesis as -follows:
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Salary, Perquisites and allowances per annum

Salary Perquisites and allowances
2100000 469800

The overall remuneration payable every year to the Managing Dlrector and the Whole- tlme Directors by

wrawr nf calary narapici

T R

(i) The Whole-Time Director shall act in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company and shall abide by the provisions contained in Section 166 of the Act with regard to
duties of directors.

(iii) TheWhole-time Directorshall adhere to the Company's Code of Conduct.

(iv)  The office of the Whole-time Director may be terminated by the Company or by him by giving
the other 1 (one) months' prior notice in writing.

Accordingly, approval of the members is sought for passing a Special Resolution for re-
appointment of Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal as a Whole-time Director, as set out under sub-
section (2) of Section 196 of the Act. Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal satisfies all the conditions set
out in Part-l of Schedule V to the Act as also conditions set out under Section 196 of the Act for
being eligible for his re-appointment. He is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in
terms of Section 164 of the Act. The above may be treated as a written memorandum setting out
the terms of re-appointment of Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal under Section 190 of the Act. Details
of Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal are provided in “Annexure A’ to the Notice pursuant to the
provisions of (i) the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and (ii) Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”),
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal is
interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice. The relatives of Mr. Naresh Kumar
Agarwal may be deemed to be interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice, to
the extentof their shareholdinginterest, ifany, in the Company.

Item No.5
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the same will be helpful to increase the business growth as it is already well known. The Directors believe
that the change in the name of the Company which is being undertaken as part of corporate rebranding
would make the name of the Company simple, sharp and focused. The name “Lehar Footwears Limited”
has been duly approved and made available for changing the name by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
office of Registrar of Companies, Central Registration Centre, Manesar, Gurugram, Hrayana, India vide its
name approval letter dated 19.08.2019 which was valid for 60 days. The proposed change of name will
notaffectany of the rights of the Company or of the shareholders/stakeholders of the Company.

ItemNo.6&7

The existing Articles of Association (“AoA”) and Memorandum of Association of the Company, based on
the Companies Act, 1956 are no longer in conformity with the 2013 Act. With the coming into force of
2013 Act, several regulations of AOA & MOA require alteration/deletion. Given this position, it is
considered expedient to adopt a new set of Articles of Association and Memorandum of Association
(primarily based on Table F & Table A set out under Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013) in place of
existing AOA & MOA, instead of amending it by alteration/incorporation of provisions of 2013 Act. As per
the provisions of Section 13 & 14 of the Companies Act, 2013, a special resolution has to be passed by the
members of the Company for adoption of amended and restated AOA & MOA of the Company. The Board
recommends the above resolution to the shareholders for their approval as Special Resolutions. A copy of
amended and restated AOA of the Company would be available for inspection of the members at the
Registered Office of the Company during the business hours on any working day. The draft MOA and AOA
will be available on the website { www.leharfootwear.com) of the Company for the reference of the

charehnlder whnce email id.is registered with.the. d 1l he.sent: engg:}jjg]
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interested inthe said resolution.

Dated: 20.08.2019

None of the directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are conc

By the order of the Ba
For Lawreshwar Polymers

Sd/-

Ramesh Chand Agar
Chairman
Place: Jaipur DIN: 00108287
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Name of the Director Naresh Kumar Agarwal

Director Identification Number 00106649

Date of Birth 01011971

Age 48

Date of Appointment 31.03.1994

Qualification Mr. Naresh Agarwal, aged 48 Year old, is a Graduate

in Commerce. He has a vast experience of 27 years
in Footwear Industry. His expertise in the field of
Finance, Accounts & Marketing has always been of
immense value for the growth of the Company.He is
well aware of each and every aspect of business and
controlling them all well

Experience in specific functional Finance and Accounts
areas

Directorship held in Other public JMR Mobilink Limited
company

Chairman/Member of the Audit Nil
Committee and Stakeholders’
Grievance Committee in other public
company
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